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Independent Auditors Report

To the Members of Popular Vehicles and Services Limited

Report on the Audit of the Consolidated Financial Statements

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of Popular Vehicles and Services Limited
(hereinafter referred to as the "Holding Company”) and its subsidiaries (Holding Company and its
subsidiaries together referred to as “the Group"}), which comprise the consolidated balance sheet as at
31 March 2022, and the consolidated statement of profit and loss (including other comprehensive
income), consolidated statement of changes in equity and consolidated statement of cash flows for the
year then ended, and notes to the consolidated financial statements, including a summary of significant
accounting policies and other explanatory information (hereinafter referred to as “the consoclidated
financial statements™.

In our opinion and to the best of our information and accarding to the explanations given to us, and based
on the consideration of reperts of the other auditors on separate financial statements of such subsidiaries
as were audited by the other auditors, the aforesaid consolidated financial statements give the information
required by the Companies Act, 2013 ("Act”) in the manner so required and give a true and fair view in
conformity with the accounting principles generally accepted in India, of the consolidated state of affairs
of the Group as at 31 March 2022, of its consolidated profit and other comprehensive income,
consolidated changes in equity and consolidated cash flows for the year then ended.

Basis for Opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with the Standards on Auditing (SAs) specified under
Section 143(10) of the Act. Qur responsibilities under those SAs are further described in the Auditor's
Responsibilities for the Audit of the Consolidated Financial Statements section of our report. We are
independent of the Group in accordance with the ethical requirements that are relevant to our audit of the
consolidated financial statements in terms of the Code of Ethics issued by the Institute of Chartered
Accountants of India and the relevant provisions of the Act, and we have fulfilled our other ethical
responsibilities in accordance with these requirements. We believe that the audit evidence obtained by us
along with the consideration of audit reports of the other auditors referred to in the "Other Matter” section
below, is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion on the consolidated financial
statements.

Management's and Board of Directors’ Responsibilities for the Consolidated Financial

Statements

The Holding Company’'s Management and Board of Directors are responsible for the preparation and
presentation of these consolidated financial statements in term of the requirements of the Act that give
a true and fair view of the consolidated state of affairs, consolidated profit/ loss and other comprehensive
income, consoclidated statement of changes in equity and consolidated cash flows of the Group in
accordance with the accounting principles generally accepted in India, including the Indian Accounting
Standards (Ind AS) specified under Section 133 of the Act. The respective Management and Board of
Directors of the companies included in the Group are responsibie for maintenance of adequate accounting
records in accordance with the provisions of the Act for safeguarding the assets of each company and for
preventing and detecting frauds and other irregularities; the selection and application of appropriate
accounting policies; making judgments and estimates that are reasonable and prudent; and the design,
implementation and maintenance of adequate internat financial controls, that were operating effectively
for ensuring the accuracy and completeness of the accounting records, relevant to the preparation and
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Independent Auditor’s Report (Continued)

Popular Vehicles and Services Limited

presentation of the consolidated financial statements that give a true and fair view and are free from
material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, which have been used for the purpose of preparation
of the consolidated financial statements by the Management and Board of Directors of the Holding
Company, as aforesaid.

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, the respective Management and Board of Directors of
the companies included in the Group are responsible for assessing the ability of each company to continue
as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and using the going
concern basis of accounting unless the respective Board of Directors either intends to liquidate the
Company or to cease operations, or has no realistic alternative but to do so.

The respective Board of Directors of the companies included in the Group are responsible for overseeing
the financial reporting process of each company.

Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Consolidated Financial Statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the consolidated financial statements
as a whole are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’s
report that includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee
that an audit conducted in accordance with SAs will always detect a material missiatement when it exists

Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered material if, individually or in the aggregate,
they could reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of
these consolidated financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with SAs, we exercise professional judgment and maintain professional
skepticism throughout the audit. We also:

* ldentify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the consolidated financial statements,
whether due to fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and
obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of
not detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from error,
as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of
internal control.

*  Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit procedures
that are appropriate in the circumstances. Under Section 143(3)(i) of the Act, we are also responsible
for expressing our opinion on whether the company has adequate internal financial controls with
reference to financial statements in place and the operating effectiveness of such controls.

* Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting
estimates and related disclosures made by the Management and Board of Directors.

* Conclude on the appropriateness of the Management and Board of Directors use of the going concern
basis of accounting in preparation of consolidated financial statements and, based on the audit
evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to events or conditions that may cast
significant doubt on the appropriateness of this assumption. If we conclude that a material uncertainty
exists, we are required to draw attention in our auditor's report to the related disclosures in the
consolidated financial statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to medify our opinion. Qur
conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor's report. However,
future events or conditions may cause the Group to cease to continue as a going concern.

*  Ewvaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the consolidated financial statements,
including the disclosures, and whether the consolidated financial statements represent the underlying
transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair presentation.

* Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the financial information of such entities or
business activities within the Group to express an opinion on the consolidated financial statements.
We are responsible for the direction, supervision and performance of the audit of the financial
information of such entities included in the consolidated financial statements of which we are the
independent auditors. For the other entities included in the consolidated financial statements, which
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Independent Auditor’s Report (Continued)
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have been audited by other auditors, such other auditors remain responsible for the direction,
supervision and performance of the audits carried out by them. We remain solely responsible for our
audit opinion. Our responsibilities in this regard are further described in the section titled “Other
Matter” in this audit report.

We communicate with those charged with governance of the Holding Company and such other entities
included in the consclidated financial statements of which we are the independent auditors regarding,
among other matters, the planned scope and timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including
any significant deficiencies in internal control that we identify during our audit.

We also provide those charged with governance with a statement that we have complied with relevant
ethical requirements regarding independence, and to communicate with them all relationships and other
matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on our independence, and where applicable, related
safeguards.

Other Matter

We did not audit the financial statements of six subsidiaries, whose financial statementsffinancial
information reflect total assets (before consolidation adjustments) of Rs. 5,342.74 Million as at 31 March
2022, total revenues (before consolidation adjustments) of Rs. 16,190.07 Million and net cash outflows
(before consolidation adjustments) amounting to Rs. 65.66 Million for the year ended on that date, as
considered in the consolidated financial statements. These financial statements/ financial information
have been audited by other auditors whose reports have been furnished to us by the Management and
our opinion on the consolidated financial statements, in so far as it relates to the amounts and disclosures
included in respect of these subsidiaries, and our report in terms of sub-section (3) of Section 143 of the
Act, in so far as it relates to the aforesaid subsidiaries is based solely on the reports of the other auditors.

Our opinion on the consolidated financial statements, and our report on Other Legal and Regulatory
Requirements below, is not modified in respect of the above matters with respect to our reliance on the
work done and the reports of the other auditors.

Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements

1. As required by the Companies (Auditor's Report) Order, 2020 (‘the Order"} issued by the Central
Government of India in terms of Section 143(11) of the Act, we give in the "Annexure A” a statement
on the matters specified in paragraphs 3 and 4 of the Order, to the extent applicable.

2 A. As required by Section 143(3) of the Act, based on our audit and on the consideration of reports of
the other auditors on separate financial statements of such subsidiaries, as were audited by other
auditors, as noted in the “Other Matter" paragraph, we repoit, to the extent applicable, that:

a. We have sought and obtained all the information and explanations which to the best of our
knowledge and belief were necessary for the purposes of our audit of the aforesaid consolidated
financial statements.

b. In our opinion, proper books of account as required by law relating to preparation of the aforesaid
consolidated financial statements have been kept so far as it appears from our examination of
those books and the reports of the other auditors.

¢c. The consolidated balance sheet, the consolidated statement of profit and loss (including other
comprehensive income), the consolidated statement of changes in equity and the consolidated
statement of cash flows dealt with by this Report are in agreement with the relevant books of
account maintained for the purpose of preparation of the consolidated financial statements,

d. Inour opinion, the aforesaid consolidated financial statements comply with the Ind AS specified
under Section 133 of the Act.

e Onthe basis of the written representations received from the directors of the Holding Company
as on 31 March 2022 taken on record by the Board of Directors of the Holding Company and the
reporis of the statutory auditors of its subsidiary companies incorporated in India, none of the
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directors of the Group companies incorporated in India is disqualified as on 31 March 2022 from
being appointed as a director in terms of Section 164(2) of the Act.

With respect to the adequacy of the internal financial controls with reference to financial
statements of the Holding Company and its subsidiary companies incorporated in India and the
operating effectiveness of such controls, refer to our separate Report in “Annexure B

B. With respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditor's Report in accordance with Rule 11 of
the Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014, in our opinion and to the best of our information and
according to the explanations given to us and based on the consideration of the reports of the other
auditors on separate financial statements of the subsidiaries, as noted in the "Other Matter’
paragraph:

a.

The consolidated financial statements disclose the impact of pending litigations as at
31 March 2022 on the consolidated financial position of the Group. Refer Note 28 to the
consolidated financial statements.

The Group did not have any material foreseeable losses on long-term contracts including
derivative contracts during the year ended 31 March 2022,

There are no amounts which are required to be transferred to the Investor Education and
Protection Fund by the Heiding Company or its subsidiary companies incorporated in India during
the year ended 31 March 2022.

d (i) The respective management of the Holding Company and its subsidiary companies incorporated

(i

in India whose financial statements have been audited under the Act have represented to us and
the other auditors of such subsidiary companies that, to the best of their knowledge and belief,
as disclosed in the Note 39 (a) to the consolidated financial statements, no funds have been
advanced or loaned or invested {either from borrowed funds or share premium or any other
sources or kind of funds) by the Holding Company or any of such subsidiary companies to or in
any other persons or entities, including foreign entities (“Intermediaries”), with the understanding,
whether recorded in writing or otherwise, that the Intermediary shall:

+ directly or indirectly lend or invest in other persons or entities identified in any manner
whatsoever by or on behalf of the Holding Company or any of such subsidiary companies
("Ultimate Beneficiaries”) or

*  provide any guarantee, security or the like on behalf of the Ultimate Beneficiaries.

The respective management of the Holding Company and its subsidiary companies incorporated
in India whose financial statements have been audited under the Act have represented to us and
the other auditors of such subsidiary companies that, to the best of their knowledge and belief,
as disclosed in the Note 39 (b) to the consoliated financial statements, no funds have been
received by the Holding Company or any of such subsidiary companies from any persons or
entities, including foreign entities ("Funding Parties”), with the understanding, whether recorded
in writing or otherwise, that the Holding Company or any of such subsidiary companies shall;

= direclly or indirectly, lend or invest in other persons or entities identified in any manner
whatsoever by or on behalf of the Funding Parties ("Ultimate Beneficiaries) or

= provide any guarantee, security or the like on behalf of the Ultimate Beneficiaries.

(i} Based on the audit procedures that have been considered reasonable and appropriate in the

circumstances performed by us and that performed by the auditors of the subsidiary companies
incorporated in India whose financial statements have been audited under the Act, nothing has
come to our or other auditors notice that has caused us or the other auditorfother auditors to
believe that the representations under sub-clause (i) and (ii) above contain any material
misstatement.

The Helding Company and its subsidiary companies incorporated in India have neither declared
nor paid any dividend during the year.
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Independent Auditor’s Report (Continued)
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C. With respect to the matter to be included in the Auditor's Report under Section 197(16) of the Act

In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us and based on the reports
of the statutory auditors of such subsidiary companies incorporated in india which were not audited
by us, the remuneration paid during the current year by the Holding Company and its subsidiary
companies fo its directors is in accordance with the provisions of Section 197 of the Act. The
remuneration paid to any director by the Holding Company and its subsidiary companies is not in
excess of the limit laid down under Section 197 of the Act. The Ministry of Corporate Affairs has not
prescribed other details under Section 197(16) of the Act which are required to be commented upon
by us.

For B S R & Associates LLP
Chartered Accountants
Firm’s Registration No.:116231W/W-100024

Bahy Paul

Partner

Place: Kochi Membership No.: 218255
Date: 14 June 2022 ICAI UDIN:22218255AKXTUHG281
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Annexure A to the Independent Auditor's Report on the Consolidated
Financial Statements of Popular Vehicles and Services Limited for the year

ended 31 March 2022

(Referred to in paragraph 1 under ‘Report on Other Legal and Regulatory
Requirements’ section of our report of even date)

{xxi) In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, following company
incorporated in India and included in the consolidated financial statements, has unfavourable
remarks, qualification or adverse remarks given by its auditor in their report under the
Companies {Auditor's Report) Order, 2020 (CARO):

‘ Sr. No. Name of the CIN Holding Clause number
| entities Company/Subsi of the CARO
| diary/ JV! report which is
Associate unfavourable or
qualified or
‘ adverse
1 Popular Holding (i)(c) and (ii){b)
Vehicles and U50102KL1983PLCO Company
Services 03741
l Limited

Pilace: Kochi
Date: 14 June 2022

For B S R & Associates LLP
Chartered Accountants
Firm’'s Registration No.:116231W/MW-100024

Baby Paul

Pariner

Membership No.: 218255

ICAI UDIN:22218255AKXTUHBE2381
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Annexure B to the Independent Auditor’s Report on the consolidated financial
statements of Popular Vehicles and Services Limited for the year ended
31 March 2022

Report on the internal financial controls with reference to the aforesaid consolidated
financial statements under Clause {i) of Sub-section 3 of Section 143 of the Act

(Referred to in paragraph 2(A)(f) under ‘Report on Other Legal and Regulatory
Requirements’ section of our report of even date)

In conjunction with our audit of the consolidated financial statements of Popular Vehicles and Services
Limited (hereinafter referred to as “the Holding Company") as of and for the year ended 31 March 2022,
we have audited the internal financial controls with reference to financial statements of the Holding
Company and such companies incorporated in India under the Act which are its subsidiary companies,
as of that date.

In our opinion and based on the consideration of reports of the other auditors on internal financial
controls with reference to financial statements of subsidiary companies, as were audited by the other
auditors, the Holding Company and such companies incorporated in India which are its subsidiary
companies, have, in all material respects, adeguate internal financial controls with reference io financial
statements and such internal financial controls were operating effectively as at 31 March 2022, based
on the internal financial controls with reference to financial statements criteria established by such
companies considering the essential components of such internal controls stated in the Guidance Note
on Audit of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting issued by the Institute of Chartered
Accountants of India (the “Guidance Note").

Management’s responsibilities for Internal Financial Controls

The respective Company's Management and the Board of Directors are responsible for establishing
and maintaining internal financial controls based on the internal financial controls with reference to
financial statements criteria established by the respective Company considering the essential
components of internal control stated in the Guidance Note. These responsibilities include the design,
implementation and maintenance of adequate internal financial controis that were operating effectively
for ensuring the orderly and efficient conduct of its business, including adherence to the respective
Company's policies, the safeguarding of its assets, the prevention and detection of frauds and errors,
the accuracy and completeness of the accounting records, and the timely preparation of reliable
financial information, as required under the Act.

Auditor’s Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the internal financial controls with reference to financial
statements based on our audit. We conducted our audit in accordance with the Guidance Note and the
Standards on Auditing, prescribed under Section 143(10) of the Act, to the extent applicable to an audit
of internal financial controls with reference to financial statements. Those Standards and the Guidance
Note require that we comply with ethical requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain
reasonable assurance about whether adequate internal financial controls with reference to financial
statements were established and maintained and if such controls operated effectively in all material
respects.

Our audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the adequacy of the internal
financial controls with reference to financial statements and their operating effectiveness. Our audit of
internal financial controls with reference to financial statements included obtaining an understanding
of internal financial controls with reference to financial statements, assessing the risk that a material
weakness exists, and testing and evaluating the design and operating effectiveness of internal control
based on the assessed risk. The procedures selected depend on the auditor's judgement, including
the assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the consolidated financial statements, whether
due to fraud or error,
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Annexure B to the Independent Auditor’'s Report on the consolidated financial
statements of Popular Vehicles and Services Limited for the year ended
31 March 2022 (Continued)

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained and the audit evidence obtained by the other
auditors of the relevant subsidiary companies in terms of their reports referred to in the Other Matter
paragraph below, is sufficient and appropniate to provide a basis for our audit opinion on the internal
financial controls with reference to financial statements.

Meaning of Internal Financial Controls with Reference to Financial Statements

A company's internal financial controls with reference to financial statements is a process designed to
provide reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of
consolidated financial statements for external purposes in accordance with generally accepted
accounting principles. A company's internal financial controls with reference to financial statements
include those policies and procedures that (1) pertain to the maintenance of records that, in reasonable
detail, accurately and fairly reflect the transactions and dispositions of the assets of the company; (2}
provide reasonable assurance that transactions are recorded as necessary to permit preparation of
consclidated financial statements in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles, and
that receipts and expenditures of the company are being made only in accordance with authorisations
of management and directors of the company; and (3) provide reasonable assurance regarding
prevention or timely detection of unauthorised acquisition, use, or disposition of the company's assets
that could have a material effect on the consolidated financial statements.

Inherent Limitations of Internal Financial Controls with Reference to Financial Statements

Because of the inherent limitations of internal financial controls with reference to financial statements,
including the possibility of collusion or improper management override of controls, material
misstatements due to error or fraud may occur and not be detected. Also, projections of any evaluation
of the internal financial controls with reference to financial statements to future periods are subject to
the risk that the internal financial controls with reference to financial statements may become
inadequate because of changes in conditions, or that the degree of compliance with the policies or
procedures may deteriorate.

Other Matter

Our aforesaid report under Section 143(3)(i) of the Act on the adequacy and operating effectiveness
of the internal financial controls with reference to consolidated financial statements insofar as it relates
to six subsidiary companies, which are companies incorporated in India, is based on the
corresponding reports of the auditors of such companies incorporated in India.

Our opinion is not modified in respect of above matters.
ForB S R & Associates LLP
Chartered Accountanis
Firm's Registration No.: 116231W/W-100024

Baby Paul

Partner

Place: Kochi Membership No.: 218255
Date: 14 June 2022 ICAI UDIN:22218255AKXTUH6281
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Popular ¥ehicles and Services Limited
Consolidated Batance Sheed as at 31 March 2022
(Al amounts are in Indian Rupees in millions)

As at Asal
Notes 31 March 2022 31 March 2021
Assets
Nom-current assels
Property, plant and ¢quipment 4 2,464 05 2,244 20
Capital work-in-progress 4 123 28 171200
Right-of-use assets 33 312994 232947
Goodwall 5 11 8¢ 11 80
Intangible assels 5 3905 4987
Financial assels
Investinents [ 44 31 40321
Onther financial assels T 32937 277 57
Income tax assets (nel) 27 $5.46 6773
Deferred tax assets {net) 17 157 69 177 84
Other non-current asscts 8 17690 14319
Total non-current assels S 6,561,585 g 5,523.97
Carrent assets
Inventories 9 3,620 38 311683
Financial assels
Invesiments 6 15 89 -
Trade receivables 10 1, 76601 1,607 27
Cash and cash equivalents 11 183 9% 55508
Bank balances other than cash and cash equivalents 12 1956 389
Other financial assels b 5893 46 35
Other curment assets 3 390 38 225 51
Total current assets 6,055.61 5,649,597
Assets classifed as held for sale a7 1542 1542
Toual assets 12,632.88 11,18%.36
Equity and liabilities
Equity
Equity share capital 13 125 44 12544
Oiher equity 2673 42 2,334 58
Total equity 2,798.86 2,460,602
Liabilities
Mon-currend liabilities
Financial Labalities
Borrowings 14 B8R0 55 89329
Lease liabilities 33 3157007 2 665 08
Other non-cumrent liabilities 17 9714 204,48
Provisions 16 6279 48 19
[ncome 1ax habililies {net} 27 | 05 208
Total non-current liabilities 4,611.60 381313
Curreat liabilities
Financial labilities
Borrowings 14 283855 263713
Lease labilites 33 26994 304 35
Trade payables 18
- Total putstanding dues of micre and simall enterprises 2767 194
- Tatal outstanding dues of creditors other than micro and small enterprises 840 63 ol 43
Other Minancial habalities 15 164 16 15650
Provigions 16 2713 3649
Income 12x liabilities {net} 27 - 315
Other cument liabiliti 17 1,034 34 1,114 76
Toual current liabilities £,222.42 4,916.21
Total equity and liabilities 12,632.38 11,189.36
Sigaificant accounting pelicies 3
The accompanying notes form an integral part ol the consolidatled Tinancial stalements
As per our report of even date atlached
Sor BS R & Associates LLP Jor and on behalf of the Board of Direclors of
CChartendid Accommtents Popular Yehicles and Services Limited
Firm ryfisteation gumber: T1623 1W/ W- 100024 CIN:US0I0ZKL 1983 PLCODad |
)l s ="
Baby Paul / ¥ John K Paol ancis K Pavl
Perrinter Managing Directir Whede Time Dirgclor
Membership Mo 218253 DIN 00016513 DIN 00 8825

Kochi »
14 June 2022 —

John Ve

( 'J'urﬂﬁik-mf (1,

Kachi
14 June 2022

Yarun TV
wr Company Secretary
Membership no 22044



Poputar Vcehicles and Services Limited
Consolidated Statement of Frofit and Loss for the year ended 31 March 2022
{All amounts are in Indian Rupees in millions)

Notes
Year ended Year ended
31 March 2022 31 March 2021
Income
Fevenue from operations 1% 3465879 2893525
Other income 20 18320 25727
Total income 34.841.99 29,192,52
Expenses
Purchases of stock-in-irade 21 2267124 24,584 89
Changes in inventories of stock-in-trade 22 {502 .55) {254 .61)
Employee benefits expense 23 242012 203507
Finance costs 4 a08 ol 551,10
Drepreciation and amonlisation expense % 69257 7.
[mpaiment loss on teade receivables a 242 2476
Other expenses b1} 145813 105388
Total expenses 34,356.53 28,720,000
Profit before tax 48546 47252
Income tax expense 27
Current tax 12047 99 86
Deferred 1ax charge 19 35 48.11
Total tax expense 148.77 L4797
Proiit after tax for the year 336.69 32455
Other comprehensive income
Trems that will not be reclassified subsequently to profii or foss
Remeasurement of net defined benefit plan income 294 9.09
[ncome tax charge relating 1o the item that will not be reclassified 1o profit or loss (0.79) {1.34)
Other comprehensive income for the year, net of income tax 215 775
Total comprehensive income for the year 338.84 332,30
Earnings per share {equity share of face value of INR. 10 each) 29
Basic {in INR) 26.85 2588
Diluted (in TNR) 26 85 2588
Significant accounting policies 3
The accompanying notes form an integral part of the consolidated financial statements.
As perour report of even date attached
for BS R & Associates LLP Jor and on behalf of 1he Board of Directors of
Chariered Accoumants Popular ¥chicles and Services Limited
Fitm reggptration number: 11623 1TW W-100024 CIN:U50102ZKL198IPLCO0374 1
7 ) W
Clr
=< 4 ’ / _
Baby Paul John Phaul Francis K Paul
Pariner Muanaging Divector Whole Time Director
Membership No.: 218255 DIN: 00016513 DIN: 000128825
Kochi

14 June 2022
John :;’rgyo/ Varun TV
et el Cffker Company Secretary
Membership no, 22044

Koch
14 Jume 2{22



Popular ¥ehicles and Services Limited

Conzolidated Statement of Changes in Equity for the year ended 31 March 2022

{All amounts are in Indian Rupees in millions)

A. Equity share capital

Parliculars Nate Equily shares Antount
- {in millions}
Balance as a1 1 April 2020 12.54 125.44
Share issued during the year 13 - .
Balance as ol 31 March 2021 ’ 1254 125,44
Share issued during the year 13 - -
Balance as at 31 March 2022 B 12.54 125.94
B Otherequity
Particulars Reserves and surplus lems of other Total other equity
compreliensive income altritiniable to equily
Securities General reserve | Other reserves Capital Relained ) holders of the Company|
premium roserve carnings I«.lnea\urenwn.l uf {net
defined benelil liability/
{assel), net of tax
Balance as at 1 April 2020 - 536,68 43.41 (16.82) 2175 131726 - 2.002.28
Total comprehensive income [or the year
Profil for the year S - - - 32455 - 324 55
Other comprehensive income, nel of 1ax - - - - - 175 175
Total comprebensive incente - - - 32458 T8 332.30
Transferred 1o retamed eamings - - - - 715 (7 15) .
Balance as at 31 March 2021 63668 43.41 (16.82) 2175 1,649.56 - 2,334,558
Batamce as at 1 April 2021 036,68 43.41 (14.82) 2075 1,649.56 - 1,334.58
Total comprehensive income for the year
Profit for the year - - - - 23669 - 33669
Other comprehensive income, net of tax - - - - - 215 245
Total comprehensive income - - = 336,69 2.15 338.84
Transferred to relained eamings - = = - 215 (215} -
Balance as af 31 March 2022 636,68 43.41 (16.82) 2175 1,988,40 - 2.673.42

The description of the nalure and purpose of each reserve within equity s as lollows:

a) Securilies preminm

Securilies premium is used 10 record the premium received on issue of shares, 1t is utilised in accordance wilh the provisions of the Compames Acl, 2013

b} General reserve

General reserve is used from Lime 1o time 1o transfer profits from relained eamings for appropriate purposes

<) (Mher reserve

This reserve represenis the difference between the value of net asset

d) Capital reserve

This reserve represents the difference between the value of net assel transferred from the Graup and the consideralion received on

¢} Retained earnings

d and the consid paid on of

q

of sch

ition of minonity inlerests

of d

Thus represents 1he profits / losses of the Group earned 1ill date, nel of appropriations

N Remeasurenent of med defined bemelit liabflicy! {asset)

Remeasurement of net defined benefit liability (o552t} comprises acluamal gains and losses and relum on plan assets {excluding inlerest income}

The accompanying noles form an integral part of 1he consolidaled financial stalements

As per our report of even dale atlached

Jor BS R & Associales LLP
Clrartefed Accomtanis
¢ number: 116231W/ W-100024

_—

Baby Paul
FPartier
Membership Mo : 218255

Eoch
14 June 2022

S and on behalf of the Board of Directors of
Popatar Velicles and Se;
USO IRk 983 PL

T
/ dobn K il

Movnaging Director
THN: 0001654 3

Kochi
14 June 2022

wi>—

Francis K Paul
Whele Fime Direcror
DIN: 00018825

Varikn T
Camiginy Secretary
Mernbership ne. 22044



Papular Vehicles and Services Limited
Consolidated Statement of cash flows for the year ended 31 March 2022
{All amounts are in Indian Rupees w millions}

Cash flows from operating activitics

Frofil before tax

Adfustments:

Finance cosis

Depreciation and amortisation

Impainment loss on financial assets

Liabilities/ provisions no longer required written back
Interest income

Rent concession received

Gain on derecognilion of tight-of-use aszets

Net gain on financial assets measured at fair value through profit and loss
Gain on sale of property, plant and equipment (net)
Operating cash flow before working capital changes

Working capital movemenis:

Increase in inventories

[ncrease in trade receivables

Decreases (increase) in loans and other financial asseis and oiher assets
Lncrease / {decrease) in liabilities and provisions

Cash generated from operations

Incoine faxes {paid) / refund, ne1

Met cash generated (romoperating activities (A)

Cash ftlows from investing activities

{Acquisition) / sale of invesiments, net

Interest received

Acquisition of property, plant and equipment
Acquisition of mtangible assets

Proceeds from sale of property, plant and equipment
Net cash used in investing activities (B)

Cash flows from financing activities
Interest paid

Long-term borrowings availed

Long-term barrowings repaid

Short-term borrowings availed /repaid), net
Lease payments during the year

Net cash used in financing activities {C)

Net (decrease) / increase in cash and cash equivalents (A+B+C)

Cash and cash equivalents at the beginning of the year
Cash and cash equivalents af the end of the year

{Refer 1o note 1 1 - Cash and cash equivalents)

Year ended
31 March 2022

Year ended
31 March 2021

48546 472 52
608 60 55110
69257 72491
042 2476
(60.01) (56.67)
(3198) (2613)
(34382 (70.35)
(0.78) (28.10)
(6.89) {19.24)
{8.20) {20.74)
1,653.37 1,552,06
(503 55) (243.55)
(168.16) (543.12)
(236.19) 604.90
10279 (42310
848.26 947.19
(151 34) 455
696.92 951,74
(4.10) 81.85
3198 15.62
{478.57) (273.41)
{247 (2087)
3932 13025
(413.84) (66.50)
(28670} (277.86)
266,43 63899
{250.32) {194.67)
172.57 {404.32)
{554.513 (468.40}
(652,53} (706,76}
(369.45) 178.48
55341 374.93
183.96 553.41
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Popular Vehicles and Sevvices Limited
Consolidated Statement of cash (Jows for the year ended 31 March 2022
{All amounts are in Indian Rupees in millions)

Reconciliation of financial liabilitics forming part of financing activities in accordance with Ind AS 7:

Particulars As at Cash Mows Non cazh changes As at
1 April 2021 Fair value Others 31 March 2022
changes
Non-current borrowings {including currenl maturities) 1,168.78 la.ll - - 1,184 89
Current bormowings 236164 17257 - - 253421
Lease liabilities (refer note 33) 2.969.43 {554 51) - 142500 3.84001
Particulars As at Cash flows Mon cazh changes As at
1 April 2020 Fair value Others 31 March 2021
changes
Non-current borrowings (including current maturities) 724 45 444 32 - 1,168.78
Currenl borrowings 276646 {404 .82) - - 2,361 64
Lease liabilities (refer note 33) 2,961 46 (468 40) - 476 37 296943

Cash Flow Statement has been prepared under the indirect method as set out in the Ind AS 7 "Statement al Cash Flows™
The accompanying noles fornt an integral parl of the consolidated financial statements
As per our report of even date attached

for BS R & Associates LLP for and on behalf of the Board of Directors of
harteged Aceauntants Popular Vehicles apyl Services Limited
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Popular Vehicles and Services Limited
Notes to the consolidated financial statements (continued)

Basis of preparation and significant accounting policies

1.

s

Company overview

Popular Vehicles and Services Limited (‘the Company’/'Popular’) was incorporated in 1983 as a
Public Limited Company and got converted into Private limited as on 24 March 2015, The Company
is engaged in the business of sale and service of automobiles, sale of spare parts and accessories,
finance and insurance commission. The Company is headquartered in Kochi, India and has
operations in Kerala and Tamil Nadu. Popular Vehicles was amongst the first batch of dealers
appointed by Maruti Suzuki in the country. The Company got converted to a public limited company
on 10 July 2018 consequent to which the name of the Company is changed to Popular Vehicles and
Services Limited.

These consolidated financial statements of the Group comprise the Company and its subsidiaries
(collectively referred to as the ‘Group’). The Company has six subsidiaries; Popular Mega Motors
(India) Private Limited, Vision Motors Private Limited, Popular Auto Dealers Private Limited,
Kuttukaran Cars Private Limited, Kuttukaran Green Private Limited (Formerly known as Kuttukaran
Pre Owned Cars Private Limited) and Popular Auto Works Private Limited which are engaged in the
business of sale and services of automobiles, sale of spare parts and accessories, finance and
insurance commission. These subsidiaries have operations in Kerala, Tamil Nadu and Karnataka.

Basis of preparation

Statement of compliance

These financial statements have been prepared on the historical cost basis and on an accrual basis,
except for certain financial instruments which are measured at fair values at the end of each
reporting period, as explained in the accounting policies below. Historical cost is generally based on
the fair value of the consideration given in exchange for goods and services

These consolidated financial statements are prepared in accordance with Indian Accounting
Standards (Ind AS) as per the Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015, notified under
Section 133 of Companies Act, 2013, (the ‘Act’) as amended and other relevant provisions of the Act.

The consolidated financial statements were authorised for issue by the Company’s Board of
Directors on 14" June, 2022.

Details of the Company’s accounting policies are included in Note 3.

Functional and presentation currency

These financial statements are presented in Indian Rupees (INR), which is also the Group’s functional
currency. All amounts are presented in Indian Rupees in millions, unless otherwise stated.

Basis of measurement

The financial statements have been prepared on the historical cost basis except for the following
items:

Items Measurement basis

Fair value of plan assets less present value of defined

Net defined benefit (asset)/ liability benefit obligations

Certain financial assets (including

investment) and liabilities Fair value

g




Popular Vehicles and Services Limited
Notes to the consolidated financial statements (continued)

2. Basis of Preparation (continued)

D.

Use of estimates and judgements

In preparing these financial statements, management has made judgements, estimates and assumptions
that affect the application of accounting policies and the reported amounts of assets, liabilities,
income and expenses. Actual results may differ from these estimates.

Estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on an ongeoing basis. Revisions to accounting
estimates are recognized prospectively.

Judgements

Information about judgements made in applying accounting policies that have the most significant
effects on the amounts recognized in the financial statements is included in Note 34 - Lease
classification.

Assumptions and estimation uncertainties

Information about assumptions and estimation uncertainties that have a significant risk of resulting
in a material adjustment for the vear ended 31 March 2022 is included in the following notes:

Note 32 — measurement of defined benetit obligations: key actuarial assumptions;

Notes 29 — recognition and measurement of provisions and contingencies: key assumptions about
the likelihood and magnitude of an outflow of resources;

Note 28 — recognition of deferred tax asset: availability of future taxable profit against which tax
losses carried forward can be used;

Note 33 — financial instruments;

Note 33 — impairment of financial assets

Measurement of fair values

A number of the Group’s accounting policies and disclosures require measurement of fair values, for

both financial and non-financial assets and liabilities. The Group has an established control

framework with respect to the measurement of fair values.

Fair values are categorised into different levels in a fair value hierarchy based on the inputs used in

the valuation techniques as follows:

- Level 1: quoted prices {unadjusted) in active markets for identical assets or liabilities.

- Level 2: inputs other than quoted prices included in Level 1 that are observable for the asset or
liability, either directly (i.e. as prices) or indirectly (i.e. derived from prices).

- Level 3: inputs for the asset or liability that are not based on observable market data (unobservable
inputs}).

When measuring the fair value of an asset or a liability, the Group uses observable market data as far

as possible. If the inputs used to measure the fair value of an asset or a liability fall into different

levels of the fair value hierarchy, then the fair value measurement is categorised in its entirety in the

same level of the fair value hierarchy as the lowest level input that is significant to the entire

measurement.

Recent Accounting Pronouncements

Amendments:

Ministry of Corporate Affairs (“MCA”) notifies new standards or amendments to the existing
standards under Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules as issued from time to time. On 23
March 2022, MCA amended the Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Amendment Rules,
2022, applicable from 1 April 2022, as below:

1 i
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Popular Vehicles and Services Limited
Notes to the consolidated financial statements (continued)

3.1

Basis of Preparation (continued)
Ind AS 16 — Property, plant and equipment

The amendment clarifies that excess of net sale proceeds of items produced over the cost of testing,
If any, shall not be recognised in the profit or loss but deducted from the directly attributable costs
considered as part of cost of an item of property, plant and equipment. The Company has evaluated
the amendment and there is no impact on its financial statements.

Ind AS 37 — Provisions, contingent liabilities and contingent assets

The amendment specifies the that the ‘cost of fulfilling” a contract comprises the ‘costs that relate
directly to the contract’. Costs that relate directly to a contract can either be incremental costs of
fulfilling that contract (examples would be direct labour, materials) or an allocation of other costs
that relate directly to fulfilling contracts (an example would be the allocation of the depreciation
charge for an item of property, plant and equipment used in fulfilling the contract). The Company
has evaluated the amendment and there is no material impact on its financial statements,

Significant accounting policies

Basis of consolidation

The consolidated financial statements include the results of the subsidiaries/ step down subsidiaries
as listed in below:

Name of the company Country | Proportion | Proportion | Proportion | Proportion
of of voting | of of voting
ownership | power ownership | power
interest held interest held
(%) directly or | (%) directly or

indirectly indirectly
(%) (%)
As at 31 March 2022 As at 31 March 2021

Subsidiaries

Popular Mega Motors (India) | India 100% 100% 100% 100%

Private Limited

Popular Auto Dealers Private | India 100% 100% 100% 100%

Limited

Popular Autoc Works Private | India 100% 100% 100% 100%

Limited

Kuttukaran  Cars  Private | India 100% 100% 100% 100%

Limited

Step-down subsidiaries

Vision Motors Private | India 100% 100% 100% 100%

Limited

Kuttukaran  Green Private | India 100% 100% 100% 100%

Limited (Formerly known as

Kuttukaran Pre Owned Cars

Private Limited)




Popular Vehicles and Services Limited
Notes to the consolidated financial statements (continued)

3.1

Significant accounting policies
Basis of consolidation (continued)
The consolidated financial statements have been prepared in the following basis:

The financial statement of the Company and its subsidiaries have been combined on a line-by-line
basis by adding together the book values of like assets, liabilities, income and expenses after
eliminating intra-group balances/ transactions and resulting unrealized profits in full.

The consolidated financial statements are presented, to the extent possible, in the same format as that
adopted by the Company for its separate financial statements. The consolidated financial statements
are prepared using uniform accounting policies for like transactions and other events in similar
circumstances.

i. Business Combination

In accordance with Ind AS 103, the Group accounts for the business combinations using the
acquisition method when control is transferred to the Group. The consideration transferred for the
business combination is generally measured at fair value as at the date the control is acquired
(acquisition date), as are the net identifiable assets acquired. Any goodwill that arises is tested
annually for impairment. Any gain on a bargain purchase is recognised in OCI and accumulated in
equity as capital reserve if there exists clear evidence of the underlying reasons for classifying the
business combination as resulting in a bargain purchase; otherwise the gain is recognised directly in
equity as capital reserve. Transaction costs are expensed as incurred, except to the extent related to
the issue of debt or equity securities.

The consideration transferred does not include amounts related to the settlement of pre-existing
relationships with the acquiree. Such amounts are generally recognised in profit or loss.

Any contingent consideration is measured at fair value at the date of acquisition. If an obligation to
pay contingent consideration that meets the definition of a financial instrument is classified as
equity, then it is not remeasured subsequently, and settlement is accounted for within equity. Other
contingent consideration is remeasured at fair value at each reporting date and changes in the fair
value of the contingent consideration are recognised in profit or loss.

If a business combination is achieved in stages, any previously held equity interest in the acquiree is
re-measured at its acquisition date fair value and any resulting gain or loss is recognised in profit or
loss or other comprehensive income (OCI), as appropriate.

Business combinations (common control business combinations)

Business combinations arising from transfers of interest in entities that are under the control of the
shareholder that controls the Group are accounted for as if the acquisition had occurred at the
beginning of the earliest comparative period presented or, if later, at the date that common control
was established; for this purpose comparatives are revised. The assets and liabilities acquired are
recognised at their carrying amounts. The identity of the reserves is preserved and they appear in the
financial statements of the Group in the same form in which they appeared in the financial
statements of the acquired entity. The difference, if any, between the value of net assets and the
consequent reduction in value of investment held by the Group is transferred to the capital reserve or
to the accumulated balance of profit and loss.

ii. Subsidiaries

Subsidiaries are all entities over which the Group has control. The Group controls an entity when the
Group is exposed to, or has rights to, variable returns from its involvement with the entity and has
the ability to affect those returns through its power to direct the relevant activities of the entity.
Subsidiaries are fully consolidated from the date on which control is transferred to the Group till the
date on which the control ceases.

The Group combines the financial statements of the parent and its subsidiaries line by line adding
together like items of assets, liabilities, equity, income and expenses. Inter-company transactions,
balances and unrealised gains on transactions between Group Companies are eliminated. Unrealised
losses are also eliminated unless the transaction provides evidence of an impairment of the
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Popular Vehicles and Services Limited
Notes to the consolidated financial statements (continued)

Significant accounting policies
Basis of consolidation (continued)

iii. Non-controlling interests (NCI)

NCI are measured at their proportionate share of the acquiree's net identifiable assets at the date of
acquisition.

Changes in the Group's equity interest in a subsidiary that do not result in a loss of control are
accounted for as equity transactions and grouped under other reserves.

iv. Associates

Associates are all entities over which the Group has significant influence but not control or joint
control over the financial and operating policies.

Interests in an associate is accounted for using the equity method. They are initially recognised at
cost which includes transaction cost. Subsequent to initial recognition, the consolidated financial
statements include the Group's share of profit or loss and other comprehensive income of equity
accounted investees until the date on which significant influence ceases.

Equity method:

Under the equity method of accounting, the investments are initially recognised at cost and adjusted
thereafter to recognise the Group's share of the post-acquisition profits or losses of the investee in
profit and loss, and the Group's share of other comprehensive income of the investee in other
comprehensive income. Dividends received or receivable from an associate is recognised as a
reduction in the carrying amount of the investment.

When the Group's share of losses in an equity-accounted investment equals or exceeds its interest in
the entity, including any other unsecured long-term receivables, the Group does not recognise further
losses, unless it has incurred obligations or made payments on behalf of the other entity.

v. Transactions eliminated on consolidation

Intra - Group balances and transactions, and any unrealised income and expenses arising from intra -
Group transactions, are eliminated. Unrealised gains arising from transactions with equity accounted
investees are eliminated against the investment to the extent of the Group's interest in the Investee.
Unrealised losses are eliminated in the same way as unrealised gains, but only to the extent that there
is no evidence of impairment.

Property, plant and equipment
Recognition and measurement

Items of property, plant and equipment are measured at cost, which includes capitalized borrowing
costs, less accumulated depreciation and accumulated impairment losses, if any.

Cost of an item of property, plant and equipment comprises its purchase price, including import duties
and non-refundable purchase taxes, after deducting discounts and rebates, any directly attributable
cost of bringing the item to its working condition for its intended use and estimated costs of
dismantling and removing the item and restoring the site on which it is located.

The cost of a self-constructed item of property, plant and equipment comprises the cost of materials
and direct labor, any other costs directly attributable to bringing the item to working condition for its
intended use, and estimated costs of dismantling and removing the item and restoring the site on
which it is located.

If significant parts of an item of property, plant and equipment have different useful lives, then they
are accounted for as separate items (major components) of property, plant and equipment.

af-\ny gain or loss on disposal of an item of property, plant and equipment is recognized in profit or.
7 G



Popular Vehicles and Services Limited
Notes to the consolidated financial statements (continued)

3.3

Significant accounting policies (continued)
Property, plant and equipment (continued)
Advances patd towards the acquisition of fixed assefs, outstanding at each balance sheet date are

shown under long-term loans and advances. The cost of fixed assets not ready for its intended use at
each balance sheet date are disclosed as capital work-in-progress.

Borrowing costs directly attributable to the acquisition, construction or production of those fixed
assets that necessarily take a substantial period to get ready for their intended use, are capitalized.
Other borrowing costs are accounted as an expense in the statement of profit and loss.

Subsequent expenditure

Subsequent expenditute is capitalized only if it is probable that the future economic benefits
associated with the expenditure will flow to the Group.

Depreciation

Depreciation is calculated on cost of items of property, plant and equipment less their estimated
residual values over their estimated useful lives using the straight-line method, and is generally
recognised in the profit or loss. Leaschold improvements are amortized over the lease term or
useful lives of assets, whichever is lower. Freehold land is not depreciated.

The estimated useful lives of items of property, plant and equipment are as follows:

Class of assets Useful life
Building owned 60
Motor cars 8
Motor cycles and trucks 10
Office Equipment 5
Plant and machinery 15
Tools and Equipment 5-15
Electrical fittings 10
Furniture and fittings 10
Computer equipment 3

* The useful life of items of property, plant and equipment is in line with the Schedule II of the
Companies Act 2013,

Depreciation method, useful lives and residual values are reviewed at each financial year end and
adjusted, if appropriate.
Intangible assets and goodwill

Intangible assets other than goodwill:
Intangibles assets are stated at cost less accumulated amortization and impairment. [ntangible assets
are amortized over their respective individual estimated useful lives on a straight-line basis,

commencing from the date the asset is available to the Group for its use and is included in
amortization in profit or loss.

The estimated useful lives are as follows:

Class of assets Years
Software 3
Brand 15 o
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Popular Vehicles and Services Limited
Notes to the consolidated financial statements (continued)

3.3

3.4

Significant accounting policies (continued)
Intangible assets and goodwill (continued)

Amortization method, useful lives and residual values are reviewed at the end of each financial year
and adjusted if appropriate.

The estimated useful life of an identifiable intangible asset is based on a number of factors including
the effects of obsolescence, demand, competition and other economic factors (such as the stability of
the industry and known technological advances) and the level of maintenance expenditures required
to obtain the expected future cash flows from the asset.

Subsequent expenditure is capitalized only when it increases the future economic benefits embodied in
the specific asset to which it relates. All other expenditure is recognized in profit or loss as incurred.

Goodwill:

For measurement of goodwill that arise from business combination [see note 3.1 (i)] above.
Subsequent measurement is at cost less any accumulated impairment loss,

Employee benefits

Short-tern employee benefits

Employee benefits payable wholly within twelve months of receiving employee services are
classified as short-term employee benefits. These benefits include salaries and wages, bonus and ex-
gratia, Short-term employee benefit obligations are measured on an undiscounted basis and are
expensed as the related service is provided. A liability is recognized for the amount expected to be
paid e.g., under short-term cash bonus, if the Group has a present legal or constructive obligation to
pay this amount as a result of past service provided by the employee and the amount of obligation
can be estimated reliably.

Post-employment benefits

Defined contribution plans

A defined contribution plan is a post-employment benefit plan under which an entity pays
fixed contributions into a separate entity and will have no legal or constructive obligation to pay further
amounts. The Group makes specified monthly contributions towards Government administered
provident fund scheme. Obligations for contributions to defined contribution plans are recognized as
an employee benefit expense in profit or loss in the periods during which the related services are
rendered by employees.

Prepaid contributions are recognised as an asset to the extent that a cash refund or a reduction in
future payments is available.

Defined benefit plans

A defined benefit plan is a post-employment benefit plan other than a defined contribution plan.
The Group’s net obligation in respect of defined benefit plan is calculated by estimating the amount of
future benefit that employees have earned in the current and prior periods and discounting that
amount and deducting the fair value of any plan assets, if any.

The calculation of defined benefit obligation is petrformed annually by a qualified actuary using
the projected unit credit method. When the calculation results in a potential asset for the Group, the
recognised asset is limited to the present value of economic benefits available in the form of any
future refunds from the plan or reductions in future contributions to the plan (‘the asset ceiling’).




Popular Vehicles and Services Limited
Notes to the consolidated financial statements (continued)

35

3.6

Significant accounting policies (continued)

Employee benefits (continued)

Re-measurements of the net defined benefit liability, which comprise actuvarial gains and losses,
the return on plan assets (excluding interest) and the effect of the asset ceiling (if any, excluding
interest), are recognized in other comprehensive income (OCI). The Group determines the net
interest expense on the net defined benefit liability for the period by applying the discount rate
used to measure the defined benefit obligation at the beginning of the annual period to the then-net
defined benefit liability, taking into account any changes in the net defined benefit liability during
the period as a result of contributions and benefit payments. Net interest expense and other
expenses related to defined benefit plans are recognized in profit or loss.

Other long term employee benefits

The employees can carry-forward a portion of the unutilized accrued compensated absences and
utilize it in future service periods or receive cash compensation on termination of employment. Since
the compensated absences do not fall due wholly within twelve months after the end of the period in
which the employees render the related service and are also not expected to be utilized wholly within
twelve months after the end of such period, the benefit is classified as a long-term employee benefit.
The Group records an obligation for such compensated absences in the period in which the employee
renders the services that increase this entitlement. The obligation is measured on the basis of
independent actuarial valuation using the projected unit credit method.

Provisions

A provision is recognized if, as a result of a past event, the Group has a present legal or
constructive obligation that can be estimated reliably, and it is probable that an outflow of
economic benefits will be required to settle the obligation. Provisions are determined by discounting
the expected future cash flows (representing the best estimate of the expenditure required to settle
the present obligation at the balance sheet date) at a pre-tax rate that reflects current market
assessments of the time value of money and the risks specific to the liability. The unwinding of the
discount is recognized as finance cost. Expected future operating losses are not provided for.

A contract is considered to be onerous when the expected economic benefits to be derived by the
Group from the contract are lower than the unavoidable cost of meeting its obligations under the
contract. The provision for an onerous contract is measured at the present value of the lower of
the expected cost of terminating the contract and the expected net cost of continuing with the
contract. Before such a provision 1s made, the Group recognizes any impairment loss on the assets
associated with that contract.

Revenue
Sale of products

Revenue on sale of vehicles, spare parts and accessories is recognised when the risk and rewards are
transferred to the customer and is accounted net of goods and service tax and discounts, if any.
Revenues are recognised when collectability of the resulting receivable is reasonably assured.

The Group generates revenue from sale of vehicles, services, spare parts and accessories and other
operating avenues. Under Ind AS 115, revenue is recognised when a customer obtains control of the
goods or services.

A contract liability is the obligation to transfer goods or services to a customer for which the Group
has received consideration (or an amount of consideration is due) from the customer. If a customer
pays consideration before the Group transfers goods or services to the customer, a contract liability
is recognised when the payment is made or the payment is due (whichever is earlier). Contract
liabilities are recognised as revenue when the Group performs its obligation under the contract.




Popular Vehicles and Services Limited
Notes to the consolidated financial statements (continued)

iif)

3.7

3.8

Significant accounting policies (continued)

Revenue (continued)
Rendering of services

Revenues from services including income from driving school are recognised when services are
rendered and related costs are incurred.

Commission, discount and incentive income

Commission income is recognised when services are rendered and in accordance with the
commission agreements.

Discounts and incentive income is recognised when the services are rendered and as per the relevant
scheme/ arrangement provided by the manufacturer. In respect of other heads of income, the Group
follows the practice of recognising income on an accrual basis.

Other Income

In calculating the interest income, the effective interest rate is applied to the gross carrying amount
of the assets (when the assets is not credit impaired). Dividend income is recognized in the statement
of profit and loss on the date on which the right to receive payment is established.

Inventories

Inventories are carried at lower of cost and net realisable value. Cost comprises purchase price, cost
of conversion and other costs incurred in bringing the inventory to its present location and condition.
The cost is calculated on specific identification basis.

The comparison of cost and net realisable value of inventory is made on an item by item basis.
Spares, lubricants, accessories and other supplies are not written down below cost except in cases
where material prices have declined and it is estimated that the cost of the goods will exceed their
net realisable value. Cost is ascertained based on First -in First-out (FIFO) adjusted for indirect
taxes.

The provision for inventory obsolescence is assessed annually and is provided as considered
necessary.

Financial instruments

i) Recognition and initial measurement

Trade receivables and debt securities issued are initially recognized when they are originated. All
other financial assets and financial liabilities are initially recognised when the Group becomes a party
to the contractual provisions of the instrument.

A financial asset or financial liability is initially measured at fair valve plus, for an item not at fair
value through profit and loss (FVTPL), transaction costs that are directly attributable to its
acquisition or issue.

ii) Classification and subsequent measurement

o the contractual terms of the financial asset give rise on specified dates to cash flows that ¢

S

Financial assets

On initial recognition, a financial asset is classified as measured at either at amortized cost, FVTPL or
fair value in other comprehensive income (FVOCI).

Financial assets are not reclassified subsequent to their initial recognition, except if and in the period
the Group changes its business model for managing financial assets.

A financial asset is measured at amortized cost if it meets both of the following conditions and is
not designated as at FVTPL:

the asset is held within a business model whose objective is to hold assets to collect contractual cash
flows; and

Bolely payments of principal and interest on the principal amount outstanding.
-y
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Popular Vehicles and Services Limited
Notes to the consolidated financial statements (continued)

3.
3.8 Financialinstruments (continued)

Signiftcant accounting policies (continued)

On initial recognition of an equity investment that is not held for trading, the Group may
irrevocably elect to present subsequent changes in the investment’s fair value in OCI (designated as
FVOCI — equity investment). This election is made on an investment by investment basis.

All financial assets not classified as measured at amortized cost or FVOC] as described above are
measured at FVTPL. This includes all derivative financial assets. On initial recognition, the Group
may irrevocably designate a financial asset that otherwise meets the requirements to be measured at
amortized cost or at FVOCI as at FVTPL if doing so eliminates or significantly reduces an accounting
mismatch that would otherwise arise.

Financial assets: Business model assessment

The Group makes an assessment of the objective of the business model in which a financial asset is
held at investment level because this best reflects the way the business is managed and information is
provided to management. The information considered includes:

- the stated policies and objectives for each of such investments and the operation of those policies
in practice,

- the risks that affect the performance of the business model (and the financial assets held within
that business model) and how those risks are managed;

- the frequency, volume and timing of sales of financial assets in prior periods, the reasons for such
sales and expectations about future sales activity.

Transfers of financial assets to third parties in transactions that do not qualify for derecognition are
not considered sales for this purpose, consistent with the Group’s continuing recognition of the assets.

Financial assets that are held for trading or are managed and whose performance is evaluated on a fair
value basis are measured at FVTPL.

Financial assets: Assessment whether contractual cash flows are solely payments of principal and
interest

For the purposes of this assessment, ‘principal’ is defined as the fair value of the financial asset on
initial recognition. ‘Interest’ is defined as consideration for the time value of money and for the
credit risk associated with the principal amount outstanding during a particular period of time and
for other basic lending risks and costs (e.g. liquidity risk and administrative costs), as well as a profit
margin.

In assessing whether the contractual cash flows are solely payments of principal and interest, the
Group considers the contractual terms of the instrument. This includes assessing whether the
financial asset contains a contractual term that could change the timing or amount of contractual
cash flows such that it would not meet this condition. In making this assessment, the Group
considers:

- contingent events that would change the amount or timing of cash flows;

- terms that may adjust the contractual coupon rate, including variable interest rate features;

- prepayment and extension features; and

terms that limit the Group’s claim to cash flows from specified assets (e.g. non-recourse features).



Popular Vehicles and Services Limited
Notes to the consolidated financial statements (continued)

Significant accounting policies (continued)
3.8 Financialinstruments (continued)

Financial assets: Subsequent measurement and gains and losses

Financial assets at | These assets are subsequently measured at fair value. Net gains and losses,
FVTPL including any interest or dividend income, are recognized in profit or loss.

Financial assets at | These assets are subsequently measured at amortized cost using the effective
amortised cost interest method. The amortized cost is reduced by impairment losses. Interest
income, foreign exchange gains and losses and impairment are recognized in
profit or loss. Any gain or loss on derecognition is recognized in profit or loss,

Equity investments | These assets are subsequently measured at fair value. Dividends are
at FVOCI recognized as income in profit or loss unless the dividend clearly represents a
recovery of part of the cost of the investment. Other net gains and losses are
recognized in OCI and are not reclassified to profit or loss.

Financial liabilities: Classification, subsequent measurement and gains and losses

Financial liabilities are classified as measured at amortized cost or FVTPL. A financial liability is
classified as at FVTPL if it is classified as held for trading, or it is a derivative or it is designated as
such on initial recognition. Financial liabilities at FVTPL are measured at fair value and net gains
and losses, including any interest expense, are recognized in profit or loss. Other financial liabilities
are subsequently measured at amortized cost using the effective interest method. Interest expense
and foreign exchange gains and losses are recognized in profit or loss. Any gain or loss on de
recognition is also recognized in profit or loss.

iii) De recognition
Financial assets

The Group derecognizes a financial asset when the contractual rights to the cash flows from the
financial asset expire, or it transfers the rights to receive the contractual cash flows in a
transaction in which substantially all of the risks and rewards of ownership of the financial asset are
transferred or in which the Group neither transfers nor retains substantially all of the risks and
rewards of ownership and does not retain control of the financial asset.

If the Group enters into transactions whereby it transfers assets recognized on its balance sheet,
but retains either all or substantially all of the risks and rewards of the transferred assets, the
transferred assets are not derecognized.

Financial liabilities

The Group derecognizes a financial liability when its contractual obligations are discharged or
cancelled, or expire.

The Group also derecognizes a financial liability when its terms are modified and the cash flows
under the modified terms are substantially different. In this case, a new financial liability based on
the modified terms is recognized at fair value. The difference between the carrying amount of the
financial liability extinguished and the new financial liability with modified terms is recognized in
profit or loss.

iv) Off setting

Financial assets and financial liabilities are offset and the net amount presented in the balance sheet
when, and only when, the Group currently has a legally enforceable right to set off the amounts and it
intends either to settle them on a net basis or to realize the asset and settle the liability
simultaneously.
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Popular Vehicles and Services Limited
Netes to the consolidated financial statements (continued)

3.

3.9

Significant accounting policies (continued)

Impairment

i) Impairment of financial instruments

The Group recognizes loss allowances for expected credit losses on financial assets measured
at amortized cost.

At each reporting date, the Group assesses whether financial assets carried at amortized cost are
credit impaired. A financial asset is ‘credit impaired’ when one or more events that have a detrimental
impact on the estimated future cash flows of the financial asset have occurred.

Loss allowances for trade receivables are always measured at an amount equal to lifetime expected’
credit losses. Lifetime expected credit losses are the expected credit losses that result from all
possible default events over the expected life of a financial instrument.

In all cases, the maximum period considered when estimating expected credit losses is the
maximum contractual period over which the Group is exposed to credit risk.

Measurement of expected credit losses

Expected credit losses are a probability weighted estimate of credit losses. Credit losses are
measured as the present value of all cash shortfalls (i.e. the difference between the cash flows due
to the Group in accordance with the contract and the cash flows that the Group expects to receive).

Presentation of allowance for expected credit losses in the balance sheet

Loss allowances for financial assets measured at amortized cost are deducted from the gross
carrying amount of the assets.

Write-off

The gross carrying amount of a financial asset is written off (either partially or in full) fo the extent
that there is no realistic prospect of recovery, This is generally the case when the Group determines
that the debtor does not have assets or sources of income that could generate sufficient cash flows
to repay the amounts subject to the write off.

Impairment of non- financial assets

The Group’s non-financial assets, other than inventories and deferred tax assets, are reviewed_at
each reporting date to determine whether there is any indication of impairment. If any such
indication exists, then the asset’s recoverable amount is estimated.

For impairment testing, assets that do not generate independent cash inflows are grouped together
into cash-generating units (CGUs). Each CGU represents the smallest group of assets that
generates cash inflows that are largely independent of the cash inflows of other assets or CGUs.

The recoverable amount of a CGU (or an individual asset) is the higher of its value in use and its fair
value less costs to sell. Value in use is based on the estimated future cash flows, discounted to their
present value using a pre-tax discount rate that reflects current market assessments of the time value
of money and the risks specific to the CGU (or the asset).

An impairment loss is recognized if the carrying amount of an asset or CGU exceeds its
estimated recoverable amount. Impairment losses are recognized in profit or loss,

In respect of assets for which impairment loss has been recognized in prior periods, the Group
reviews at each reporting date whether there is any indication that the loss has decreased or no
longer exists. An impairment loss is reversed if there has been a change in the estimates used to
determine the recoverable amount. Such a reversal is made only to the extent that the asset’s
carrying amount does not exceed the carrying amount that would have been determined, net of

depreciation or amortization, if no impairment loss had been recognized.
eS500y




Popular Vehicles and Services Limited
Notes to the consolidated financial statements (continued)

3.

Significant accounting policies (continued)

3.10 Leases

i

ii.

Determining whether an arrangement contains a lease

At inception of an arrangement, it is determined whether the arrangement is or contains a lease. At
inception or on reassessment of the arrangement that contains a lease, the payments and other
consideration required by such an arrangement are separated into those for the lease and those for
other elements on the basis of their relative fair values.

Group as a lessee

The Group accounts for each lease component within the contract as a lease separately from non-
lease components of the contract and allocates the consideration in the contract to each lease
component on the basis of the relative stand-alone price of the lease component and the aggregate
stand-alone price of the non-lease components.

The Group recognises right-of-use asset representing its right to use the underlying asset for the lease
term at the lease commencement date. The cost of the right-of-use asset measured at inception shall
comprise of the amount of the initial measurement of the lease liability adjusted for any lease
payments made at or before the commencement date less any lease incentives received, plus any
initial direct costs incurred and an estimate of costs to be incurred by the lessee in dismantling and
removing the underlying asset or restoring the underlying asset or site on which it is located. The
right-of-use assets is subsequently measured at cost less any accumulated depreciation, accumulated
impairment losses, if any and adjusted for any remeasurement of the lease liability. The right-of-use
assets is depreciated using the straight-line method from the commencement date over the shorter of
lease term or useful life of right-of-use asset. The estimated useful lives of right-of-use assets are
determined on the same basis as those of property, plant and equipment. Right-of-use assets are
tested for impairment whenever there is any indication that their carrying amounts may not be
recoverable. Impairment loss, if any, is recognised in the statement of profit and loss.

The Group measures the lease liability at the present value of the lease payments that are not paid at
the commencement date of the lease. The lease payments are discounted using the interest rate
implicit in the lease, if that rate can be readily determined. If that rate cannot be readily determined,
the Group uses incremental borrowing rate. The lease payments shall include fixed payments,
variable lease payments, residual value guarantees, exercise price of a purchase option where the
Group is reasonably certain to exercise that option and payments of penalties for terminating the
lease, if the lease term reflects the lessee exercising an option to terminate the lease.

The lease liability is subsequently remeasured by increasing the carrying amount to reflect interest
on the lease liability, reducing the carrying amount to reflect the lease payments made and
remeasuring the carrying amount to reflect any reassessment or lease modifications or to reflect
revised in-substance fixed lease payments. The Group recognises the amount of the re-measurement
of lease liability due to modification as an adjustment to the right-of-use asset and statement of profit
and loss depending upon the nature of modification. Where the carrying amount of the right-of-use
asset is reduced to zero and there is a further reduction in the measurement of the lease liability, the
Group recognises any remaining amount of the re~measurement in statement of profit and loss.

The Group has elected not to apply the requirements of Ind AS 116 Leases to short-term leases of all
assets that have a lease term of 12 months or less. The lease payments associated with these leases
are recognized as an expense on a straight-fine basis over the lease term.
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Popular Vehicles and Services Limited
Notes to the consolidated financial statements (continued)

3.

3.10

ii.

Significant accounting policies (continued)

Leases (continued)
Group as a lessor

At the inception of the lease the Group classifies each of its leases as either an operating lease or a
finance lease. The Group recognises lease payments received under operating leases as income on a
straight- line basis over the lease term. In case of a finance lease, finance income is recognised over
the lease term based on a pattern reflecting a constant periodic rate of return on the lessor’s net
investment in the lease. When the Group is an intermediate lessor it accounts for its interests in the
head lease and the sub-lease separately. It assesses the lease classification of a sub-lease with
reference to the right-of-use asset arising from the head lease, not with reference to the underlying
asset. If a head lease is a short term lease to which the Group applies the exemption described above,
then it classifies the sub-lease as an operating lease.

If an arrangement contains lease and non-lease components, the Group applies Ind AS 115 Revenue
from contracts with customers to allocate the consideration in the contract.

3.11 Recognition of interest income or interest expense

3.12.

s
1.

Interest income or expense is recognized using the effective interest method.

The ‘effective interest rate’ is the rate that exactly discounts estimated future cash payments or
receipts through the expected life of the financial instrument to the gross carrying amount of the
financial asset or the amortized cost of the financial liability.

In calculating interest income and expense, the effective interest rate is applied to the gross carrying
amount of the asset (when the asset is not credit-impaired) or to the amortized cost of the liability.

Income tax

Income tax comprises current and deferred tax. [t is recognized in profit or loss except to the extent
that it relates to an item recognized directly in equity or in other comprehensive income.

Current tax

Current tax comprises the expected tax payable or receivable on the taxable income or loss for the year
and any adjustment to the tax payable or receivable in respect of previous years.The amount of
current tax reflects the best estimate of the tax amount expected to be paid or received after
considering the uncertainty, if any, related to income taxes. It is measured using tax rates (and tax
laws) enacted or substantively enacted by the reporting date.

Current tax assets and current tax liabilities are offset only if there is a legally enforceable right to set
off the recognized amounts, and it is intended to realize the asset and settle the liability on a net
basis or simultaneously.

Deferred tax

Deferred tax is recognized in respect of temporary differences between the carrying amounts of assets
and liabilities for financial reporting purposes and the corresponding amounts used for taxation
purposes. Deferred tax is also recognized in respect of carried forward tax losses and tax credits,

Deferred tax assets are recognized to the extent that it is probable that future taxable profits will be
available against which they can be used. The existence of unused tax losses is strong evidence that
future taxable profit may not be available, Therefore, in case of a history of recent losses, the
Group recognizes a deferred tax asset only to the extent that it has sufficient taxable
temporary differences or there is convincing other evidence that sufficient taxable profit will be
dvm]able against which such deferred tax asset can be realized. Deferred tax assets —~ unrecognized or
Cognized, are reviewed at each reporting date and are recognized/ reduced to the extent that it is
t;‘:lbhf no longer probable respectively that the related tax benefit will be realized.
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Notes to the consolidated financial statements (continued)

3. Significant acconnting policies (continued)

3.2

313

3.14

315

3.16

Income tax (continued)

Deferred tax is measured at the tax rates that are expected to apply to the period when the asset is
realized or the liability is settled, based on the laws that have been enacted or substantively enacted by
the reporting date. The measurement of deferred tax reflects the tax consequences that would follow
from the manner in which the Group expects, at the reporting date, to recover or seftle the carrying
amount of its assets and liabilities.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are offset if there is a legally enforceable right to offset current
tax liabilities and assets, and they relate to income taxes levied by the same tax authority on the same
taxable eatity, or on different tax entities, but they intend to settle current tax liabilities and assets on a
net basis or their tax assets and liabilities will be realized simultaneously.

Borrowing cost

Borrowing costs are interest and other costs (including exchange differences relating to foreign
currency borrowings to the extent that they are regarded as an adjustment to interest costs) incurred
in connection with the borrowing of funds. Borrowing costs directly attributable to acquisition or
construction of an asset which necessarily take a substantial period of time to get ready for their
intended use are capitalized as part of the cost of that asset. Other borrowing costs are recognized as
an expense in the period in which they are incurred.

Earnings per share

The basic earnings per share is computed by dividing the net profit after tax for the year
attributable to equity shareholders by the weighted average number of equity shares outstanding during
the year.

The number of shares used in computing diluted earnings per share comprises the weighted average
number of shares considered for deriving basic earnings per share and also the weighted average
number of equity shares that could have been issued on the conversion of all dilutive potential
equity shares. Dilutive potential equity shares are deemed converted as of the beginning of the
period unless issued at a later date. In computing dilutive earning per share, only potential equity
shares that are dilutive i.e. which reduces earnings per share or increases loss per share are included.

Cash-flow statement

Cash flows are reported using the indirect method, whereby net profit before tax is adjusted for the
effects of transactions of a non-cash nature and any deferrals or accruals of past or future cash receipts
or payments. The cash flows from regular revenue generating, investing and financing activities of
the Group are segregated.

Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents comprise cash at bank and on hand and short-term deposits with an
original maturity of three months or less which are subject to insignificant risk of changes in value.
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Notes to the consolidated financial statements (continued)

3.
3.17

3.18

Significant accounting policies {continued)

Contingent liabilities and assets

Contingent liabilities are disclosed when there is a possible obligation arising from past events, the
existence of which will be confirmed only by the occurrence or non-occurrence of one or more
uncertain future events not wholly within the control of the Company or a present obligation that
arises from past events where it is either not probable that an outflow of resources will be required to
settle or a reliable estimate of the amount cannot be made, is termed as a contingent liability. The
existence of a contingent liability is disclosed in the notes to the financial statements

Non-current assets classified as held for sale

Assets are classified as held for disposal and stated at the lower of carrying amount and fair value
less costs to sell. To classify any Asset as “Assets classified as held for sale” the asset must be
available for immediate sale and its sale must be highly probable. Such assets or group of assets are
presented separately in the Balance Sheet, in the line “Assets classified as held for sale™. Once
classified as held for sale, intangible assets and Property Plant Equipment are no longer amortised or
depreciated.
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Popular Yehicles and Services Limited
Nates to the conselidated financial statements {continued)
(Al amounis are in Indian Rupees in millions, unless othenwise stated)

4 Property, plant and equipment and capit work-im-progress (continued)

i) Title deeds of immovable propertics not keld in the name of the Group

Drescripti Asat Asal
escription 31 March 2022 31 March 2021
Title deeds lield in the name of The Company
Whether litle deed holdec is a promoter, director ot telative of promoter/direcior or employee of promoter/director WNon applicable
Reasom for ol bemng held in the name of the Company Mol appheable
b} Ageing of capital work in progress
Capilal worlk-in-progress represenls expenditurg lowards construchion of new workshops! service cenbres.
As at 31 March 2022
Deseription Less than 1-2 years 2-3 years More flian Total
1 year 3 years
Projects in progress 123.06 022 . - 123.28
Projects remporarily suspended . c 2 - =
123.06 0.22 - - 123,28
As at 31 March 2021
h ’
Description Less than 1-2 years 1.3 years Hove than Total
1 year 3 years
Prajecls in progress 2235 150,14 - - 173.09
Projects lemporanily suspended - - - - -
1235 150.74 - - 171.0%
) Details of Capital Work-in-progress, whose completion is overdue or has excecded its cost compared to its orginal plan
As at 31 March 2022
To be completed in
Descripti
escription Less than 1 1.2 Years 2.3 Years More Than 3 Total
Year Years
Project - Trivandrum Commercial Yehicles Showroom 1.67 = = - 1.67
As at 31 March 2011
To be completed in
Description Less than | 12 Years 3.3 Vears More Than 3 Total
Year Years
| Project - Corporate Office renovation 5,50 - - - 550
Project — Payyannur PDI 1849 - - - 12.49
|Project Arena Kannur 4435 - - - 44,23
Project Ity Service .55 - - - 055
Project Medumanagadu Service 331 - - - 331
d) There are no procesdings initialed or pending against the Group for holding any benami propeny under the Benami Transactions {Prohibitions) Act, 1988 (45 of 1982) and 1he wles made

thereunder, for the years ended 31 March 2022 and 31 March 2021
&) For details of property, plant and equipment pledged, refer note 14
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Popular ¥Vehicles and Services Limited
Notes to the ¢ lidated Minancial stat ts (continued)
{All amounts are in Indian Rupees in millions)

5 Imtangible assets

Particulars Computer Other Total (A} Goodwill Taotal
software  intangible asscis (Refer Note below) (A+B}
(B}

Reconciliation of carrying amount
Gross carrying value

Balance at 1 April 2020 3108 9737 128 45 - 128.45
Additions/transfers Q07 - 907 11.80 20.87
Balance at 31 March 2021 40,15 97.37 137.52 1120 149,32
Balance at 1 Aprif 2021 4015 ¥737 137.52 11.80 149 32
Additionsfiransfers 247 - 247 - 247
Balance at 31 March 2022 42.62 97.37 139.99 11.80 151,79
Accu I d amortisati

Balance at | April 2028 1325 5928 7253 . 7253
Awmortisation/ impainnem for (the year 10.22 4.90 1512 - 1512
Balance at 31 March 2021 23.47 64.18 87.65 - 87.65
Balance at 1 Apnl 2021 33 47 6d 18 8765 - 8765
Amortisation/ impairment for the year 776 5.53 13.29 - 13.29
Balance at 31 March 2022 3123 69,71 100.%4 - 100,94

Met carrying amount

At 31 March 2022 11.39 27.66 39.05 11.80 5085
At 31 March 2021 16.68 33,19 49.87 11.8¢ 61.67
Mote:

1) This represents the excess purchase consideralion paid during year ended 31 March 2021 for the business acquisition from Prerana Motors Privale Limited for the whalesale
disiribution of spare parls faccessories of Tata Motors division for the State of Kamartaka based on the agreement daled @ January 2021

A. Consideration transferred

The following table izes the acquisition dafe fair value of consideration transferred:
Particulars Amount
Tolal consideration 30.87

B. Identifiable assels acquired and liabilties assumed

Particulars Amount
Property, plant and equipment 0.42
Inventories 18.65
Total assets 19.07

Other liabilities -
Total liabilities -

Net identifiable assets nequired 1907
C. Goodwill

Goodwill arising frem acquisition has been determined as follows:

Particulars Amount
Consideration transferred / transferable 30.87
Fair value of net idenlifable assets acquired 19.07

Goodwill 11.80




Popolar Vehicles and Scrvices Limited

MNoies (o (he lidated 1 ial { d)
(Al amounts are in Indian Rupees in millions)
As at Asal
31 March 2012 31 March 2021
[ Tuvestalents
Mon-currend loyvestinenis, ungamoted
Trvestiments in egrdty shares af FYTPL
Lowinomic Tech Solulions Privaie Limited 240 240
9,600 equity shares ol INR 10 each (9600 equiry shares of Rs 10 ¢ach)
Less: Provision for impairment 2 40) {2400
Fuvestnents fn preferetice siures ar FVTPL
Prabal Mailors Privaie Limited {(formerly known as Popular Kutlukaran Cars Private Limiled) 020 020

20000 (31 March 2021 : 20,000) redeemable preference shares of face value of INR, 10 cach
MNon-current invesiment in others, FYTPL

Cieweed
Invesiments in equily instruments {valued at EMY}, fully paid up 209 1817
Elricpiansteed
nvesirment in mulual funds 2317 3084
44.31 49.21
Aggregare book value of pon-current investmenis-ungquoned o 2577 1344
Ageregale book! marker value of non-current investments-quoted 0M 1817
Ageregale provision for impaimient in value of investment {2.40) (24
Current jmvestmenis
Investmentd in debentures al FYTPL
1 in deb =] d at fair value through profil or loss 1589 -
15.59 -
Aggregate book value of current investments-ungquoled 1589 .
7 Other financial assels
MNon-current
Conmsichericd goodd - Lmseenred
Rent and ather deposits 07 86 27757
Balance with bank held as margin money 26351 -
329,37 27157
Curvent
Comsidered good - Unseenred
Renl and other depasits 3B 93 46 36
Dues from others 304 0
Less: Allowances for expected credil loss (5 00 {5.00)
58.93 46.36
8 Other assels
Non-curvent
Cansidered good - Unecired
Capital advances ERRL| 1515
Less: allowances [or expecied credil loss (4 18) .
Prepayments 11535 [020
Balance with stalutory f government authornilies 3472 31784
176.9%0 143.1%
Current
Comicdered good - Usecur ed
Prepaymenis # 8923 33179
Balance with staiutory! govemment authonties 21891 15704
Advance 10 staff’ 1] 046
Balance with Lile Insurance Corporation Grawily Fund, net {refer note 313 - 1176
Payment to vendors for supply of goods and services 80 93 8246
300,88 185,51
567,78 428,70

# Prepayments include the expendiwre incurred by the Group amoonting o Rs 52 80 miilion for the year ended 31 March 2022 wowards the proposed initial public offer which has been classified under
"other current assets” in the financial The Company expects lo recover certain amounts [rom the shareholders and 1he balance amount would be charged-off 10 securilies premium accounl in
accardance with Seclion 52 of the Companies Acl, 2012 upon the shares being issued

The Group has nol given any loan to their directors for the year ended 31 March 2022 and 11 March 2021




Popular ¥ehicles and Services Limiled

Mates 4o (he ¢ didaied fimancial siat 15 o

e

(411 amounts are in Indian Bupess im millions, unless otherwise stated)

As
31 March 2022

Asal
31 Klarch 2021

Inventories

(o ot foer of cost omd wet realibie vafie)

Mew vehicles 2,490 8% 2,194 63

Pre-owned vehicles 442 66 264 71

Spares and lubricants 61422 554 74

Accessories 11373 1099

1,666 30 agsq7

Less: Provision for obsolele inveatory {46 12) {68 24)

362038 3,116.83_

Closing siock includes value of goods in transil of new vehicles for Bs. 1349 9% million (31 March 2021:Rs 1330 54 million), accessories For Rs 27 72 (31 March 2020 Rs 15 86 million}and spares and

lubricants for Rs. 55 42 million {31 March 202): Rs 45 81 million)

Trade receivables
Ehvecured, comiclered gewnd

From related parties (refer note 36) 10603 06
Other than related paries 1.755 98 1.604 21
1,766.0) 1,607.27
Uvecmr e, credit tmpaired
From related panties {refer ncde 36) - -
Other than related parties 49 50 5050
49.50 80.50
Less: allowsnces for expecled credit loss {refer note 32 Biii)) (4% 50) (50 500
Net teade receivables 1,766,01 1.607.27
For details of irade receivables pledged. refer note 14
The Group's exp 1o credit and risks and |oss allowances related 10 trade receivables are disclosed in note 32
Tronke vecervobles apeing softedute
Asat 3§ March 2022
Ouistanding for loblowing periods from due date of payment
Description Less ihan 6 6 months - |1 More than 3
Not due monihs year [-2 years  2-3 years years Tatal
i nchspaned Trade yeceivables — considered good 1€ 53 165943 969 BO5 . - 1,696.05
iilJndisputed Trade Receivables — which bave sigmfica werease i eredin ish. - - 69 0 090 - 69.96
i ilndi d Trade Receivables — credil impaired - 1275 900 2194 572 - 49.50
18.88 167218 £7.84 30489 572 - 1,815.51
As at 31 March 2021
QOuistanding for following periods frons due date of payment
Lessthan 6 6 months - 1 More than 3
Not due months year  1-2years  I-3 years years Taal
ifUndisputed Trade receivables — considered good 1961 1,572 1% 1548 - - 1.607.27
i) Undizputed Tiade Receivables — which have sipnificant increase w credit sk - - - 3 - =
puted Trade Receivables  credid impaired - # 54 457 3018 321 50.50
14.41 1.580.72 22.05 A0.18 5.21 - 1.652.77
Cash and cash equivalents
Balance with banks 162 81 53368
Cash on hand 1436 13.69
Cheques on hand 679 |
Cash and cash equivalents in balance sheet 183.96 S55.08
Less: Book overdrafls used lor cash managemenl purposes - 157
Cash and cash equivalents in 1he seatement of eash flows 1 §3.96 553.41
Bank balances other than cash and cash equivalents
Balance with banks held as inargin money 1% 36 3z 92
1956 3892




Popular Vehicles and Services Limited
Naotes to the consolidated flinancial statements (continued)
(Al amounts and nwmber of shares in Indian Rupees million)

As at 31 March 2022 As at 31 March 2021
13 Equity share capital Number of shares Amouni  Mumber of shaves Amount
Autharised
Equily shares of INR 10 each 15,00 15000 15.00 150,00
15.00 15000 15.00 150,00
Isswed, subscribed and paid-up
Equity shares of INR. 10 each, fully paid-up 1254 125 44 1254 125 44
12.54 125.44 12.54 125.44
Reconciliation of shares tanding at the beginning and at the end of the year
Foqunty shares of INR 10 cach fully pardeup
Ar the beginning of the year 12,54 125.44 12.54 125 44
Issued during the year - - - -
At e end of the year 1254 125,44 1254 125.44

{a) Terms and rights attached to equity shares
The Company has a single class of equity shares. All the equity shares rank equally with regard 1o dividends and share in the Company's residual assets. The equiry shares
are entitled 1o receive dividend as declared from lime to time. The voting rights of an equity shareholder on a pol! (not on show of hands) are in propoction 1o share of paid-
up equily capital of the Company, Voting rights cannot be exercised in respect of shares on which any call or other sums presently payable have not been paid. Failure to pay
any amount called up an the shares may lead to the forfeilure of shares. On winding up of the Company, he holders of the equily shares will be entitled (o receive the
residual assets of the Company, Temaining after the distribution of all preferantial amounis, if any, in propontion to the number of equiry shares held

The Company is largely held by individuals and accordingly does not have a holding/ ultimate holding company

(b} Details of shareholders holding moere than 5% sharcs of the Company

Az at 31 March 202} As at 31 March 2021
Equity shares of INKR 10 each foilly paid up held by Number of shares "‘X. holding Number of sharcs ‘% helding
in the class in the class
a) BanyanTree Growth Capital 1[, LLC 4.27 M01% 427 34.01%
b) Francis K Paul - Promoter 275 21.93% 275 2193%
<) Jahn K Paul - Promoter 275 21.93% 275 21.93%
d) Naveen Philip - Promoter 215 2193% 275 2193%
{¢}  Details of shares held by promoters at the end of the year
As at 31 March 2022 Ag at 31 March 2021
Mame of the promoters Mumber of chares % holding Mumber of shares *% holding
in the class in the class
a} Franciz K Paul - Promoter 215 2193% 275 21.93%
by Johin K Paul - Promoler 275 2] 938 275 21.93%
c} Maveen Philip - Prowmoter 215 21.93% 275 2193%

(d)  Details of bonus shares issued during the five years immediately preceding the balance sheet date.
Dwring the year ended 31 Macch 2019, 8 62 million equity shares of Rs. 10 each, fully paid np, has been alloied as bonus shares by capitalisation of preneral reserve

(e) Details of buybuck and shares issued for consideration other than for cash in the five years immediately preceding the balance sheet date.
The group has not bought back any class of equity shares nor has there been any issue for consideration other than for cash during the period of five years immediate
preceding the balance sheet date




Popular Vehicles and Services Limited
Notes to the consolidated financial statements {(continucd)
{All amounts are in Indian Rupees in millions)

14 Borrowings
Non-current
Secured
Term loans from banks
Term loans from financial institutions
Vehicle loans from financial institutions
Loans from directors (refer note (iii) below)

Current

Secured

Cash credit and overdraft facilities from banks
Short term loans from banks

Short term loans from financial institutions
Current maturities of long-term borrowing
Unsecured

Short tetm loans fiom banks

Short term loans from financial institutions
Loans from directors (refer note (i) below)

Total borrowings

(i) Information about the Group's exposure to interest rate and liquidity risks are included in note 32.

(ii) The loans from directors represents the loan taken by subsidiaries from their directors.
{(iii) For details with respect to terms and conditions of borrowings, refer note 14A.

As at
31 March 2022

Asat
31 March 2021

839.99 842.39
13.90 2972
6.38 21.18
20.28 -
880.55 893.29
171.88 206.09
2,062.77 1,878.80
192.73 191.64
304.34 275.49
15.40 -
3843 48.87
53.00 30.18
2,838.55 2,637.13
3,719.10 3,530.42




Popular ¥ehicles and Services Limited

MNotes to the conselidated Minancial statements {continued}

(Al amouts are in Jidian Rupees inmillions)

14
A

Berrowings (comlinued)

Statewment of detaibs of terms and conditions of the current and non-current borrowings.

Borrowed by

Naote:

. As at As al P

Mature of boreowing pa.re?.t‘.frics 31 March 2022 31 Mavch 2021 Security terms

Non-current, secured

Term loans from banks Parei 763.50 740.56 | Secured by~ a} collateral security by way of cquitable morigage over immovable propertics of the
|company and b} personal guarantees by Jobn K Paul, Francis K Paul and Naveen Philip, diteclots of
the Company

Ter loans from banks  |Subsidiaries 32320 222.04 | Secured by: a} collaleral security by way of equitable morigage over immovable properties of the
group and b} personal guarantees by John K Paul, Frangis K Paul and Naveen Philip, directors of|
the company and promotor direclors of the group

Term loans from financral |Subsidiaries 4230 14200 | Secored by: a) equitable mortgage of common collateral secunilies of immovable properties of the

msinudions eroup by personal puacantees by Maveen Philip, director of the company

Wehicle loans from Parent 11.94 32.67 | Secured by: a) hypolhecation of the respeclive motor vehicles and b personal guarantees by John

financial instilutions . Paul and Francis K Pau!, divectars of the Company

Vehicle loans from Subzidiarics 2302 3151 | Secured by: a) hypathecation of the respeclive molor vehicles and b) persenal guaranizes by John

Nnancial mslilnlions K Paul, Francis K Paul and MNaveen Philip, dwoctors of the company and promaotor directors of the)
group

MNon current, wnsecured

Loans fiom directocs Subsidiaries 2023 As per the apreed lenns the loans were repayable within 2 period of onz year from the balance sheet
date

Current, secured

Cash creditand overdiai  |Subsidiades 171 82 206.09 |Secured by: a) first charge on the current asseis of the Group excluding specific charges given for

facilities from banks invenlory finding; b) collateral security by way of equitable mortgage of the iimmovalde properties
of the Group and c) personal puarantees by John K Paul, Francis K Paul and Naveen Philip,
directors of the company and promotor ditectors of the proup

Short lern loan fFrom banks|Parent 132339 117556 |Secured by a) exclusive charge on the stock and receivables funded by bank and marked with lien;
by equitable morlgage oo residential property of 1he director & propey belonging fo the Group as
collateral secutitics and ¢) persenal puarantees by John K Paul, Francis K Paul and Maveen Philip,
diraclors of the Company

Short term loan from banks| Subsidianes 13938 103,30 |Secwred by: a) exclusive charge on the stock and receivables funded by bank and marked with lien;
b) equitable morigage on residential property of the director & property belenging to the Group as
collareral seculities and ¢) personal puarantees by John K Paul, Francis K Paul and Naveen Philip,
directors of the company and promotor divectors of the proup

Shoit term loan from Subsidiaries 19273 191,64 [Secured by: a} equitable mortgage of common collateral securities of immovable properties

financial institutions belonping to Kuttukaran Trading Venluwres and Kitiukaran Homes LLP ; b} equitable monigage of|
immaovable properties belonging to directars of the Company ¢} personal puarantees by John K Paul,
Francis K Paul and Maveen Philip, divectots of the company and promotor directors of ithe proup and
d) corporate guaraniee of Kuuukaran Trading Ventures

Current, unseouved

Short renn Toans from Parenl 1540 - Personal goarantess by John K Paul and Francis K Paul, ditectors of the Company,

banks

Shott tenm loans from Farem 3843 3011 | Peraonal guarantees by Jobn K Paul and Francis K Paul, direciors of the Company,

financial institulions

Short renn leans fiom Subsidiaries - 18.76 |Personal guaraniees by John B Paul, Francis K Faul and Mawveen Philip, directors of the company

financial institutions and promotor divectors of the group

Loans from direciors Subsidiaries 3109 306,18 | As per the agreed lenns the loans were repayable within a period of one year fiom the balance sheet
date

3,719.10 3,530.42

*Horronings v ks fnancial Ieiaions carey iaferest redes from 7.3 0% o JGR per aenien
The Group has utilised (he loans availed Tor Lhe pumaose il was availed




Popular YVehicles and Services Limited
Notes to the consolidated financial statements (continued}
{All amounts are in Indian Rupees in millions)

14 Borrowings (contimwed)
B The Group has availed working capital facahiies fom Ganks on the basis of secanty of curtent assets and bave submitted quarnterly returns of current assels and curreni labililies to the bankers
Following is the summary of reconciliabions and reasons for differences between such returns and book of accounls

Amaouvni as Whother
Quarter ended Mame of bank Particolars Amoumt as per baoks] veported in the A!‘llo!lllt of redurnfsialenvemt
ol a¢epunt quarterly requrnf|  dilference )
subsequently rectified
statentend
30 June 2021 Federal Bank Inveniory 262250 3,040 00 (417 30
30 September 2021 Federal Bank Invenlony 1,497 14 1,692 00 (195 763 M
o
11 December 2021 Federal Bank Inventory 1,057 64 1,140 00 (£2.36)
21 March 2022 Federal Bank Inventony 2,022 2] 2.420 00 (307 7%
3 June 2021 Federal Bank Oiher curreni liabilities 234291 202000 jzze
30 September 2021 Federal Bank Other current [1abilities 660 54 53073 122 81
Mo
31 December 2021 Federal Bank Other current habilities 8e2 87 41000 452 87
31 March 2022 Federal Gank Ouher current liabilities 952 0% GHr 00 (17 94)

The Group has been sanclioned working capital iimits fioin banks/financial institurion on the basis of security of current assets which consists of inventocy. The value declared to the banks is
inclusive of GST paid on it as banks/financial institulion funding s inclusiveof GST. However, 1he value considered in the financial statement is exclusive of GST and since such GST poction was
not considered as pant of cosl inventory

As per the condition upon which banks/financial institutions have funded the working capital tequirements, Ihe Group is also required to provide delails of its trade payable and olher current
linbifities on a periodic basis. As the working capital support is for mesting the day today operational vequirements, the Company did not consider trade payable and other current liabilities
pertaiming to its corporate office functions while providing periodic statement to banks/financial institutions. However, the trade payable and olher current liabilities disclosed in the financial
statement is inclusive of frade payables and other carrent Liabilines pertaining 1o its corporate office functions.




Popular Vehicles and Services Limited
Notes to the consolidated financial statements (continued)
{All amounts are in Indian Rupees in millions)

15 Other financial liabilities
Current
Interest accrued bul not due on borrowings
Accrued salaries and benefits
Book overdrafts
Dues to creditors for capital goods

As at
31 March 2022

As al
31 March 2021

The Group's exposure to currgncy and liquidity risk related to the above financial liabilities is disclosed in note 32.

16  Provisions
Non-current
Provision for emplovee benefits ¥
Net defined benefit liability - Gratuity
Compensated absences

Curreat

Provision for employee benefits *
Net defined benefit liability - Gratuity
Compensated absences

* Also refer note 31

17  Other liabilities
Non-current
Advance from vendors for rebates

Other liabilities

Current

Contract liabilities (refer note 19)
Advance from vendors for rebates
Statutory dues payables

Movement in contract liabilities

Opening balance at the beginning of the year

Less ;: Revenue recognised during the year

Add: Additions to advances from customers during the year
Closing balance at the end of the year

1.41 2.08
142,56 143.40
: 1.67
20.19 9.75
164.16 156.90
17.21 451
4558 43.68
62.79 48.19
1.50 0.98
25.63 35.51
27.13 36.49
89.92 84.68
97.14 204.48
97.14 204.48
788.41 824.53
89.00 97.10
176.93 193.13
1,054.34 1,114.76
1,151.48 1,319.24
824,53 48185
(824.53) (481.85)
788.41 824.53
788.41 824.53

The contract liabilities primarily relate to the advance consideration received from the customers for the purchase of vehicles. This will be recognised a
revenue as and when the Company meet the performance obligation by delivering the vehicles. Refer Note 19 for more details,



Popular Vebicles and Services Limited
Notes to the consolidated financial statements (continued)
{All amounts are in Indian Rupees in millions)

As at As al
31 Mavch 2022 31 March 2021

18 Trade payables
Total outstanding dues of micro and small enterprises 27.67 1.94
Total outstanding dues of creditors other than micro and small enterprises 840,03 661.49
868.30 663.43

Trade pavable ageing schedule
As at 31 March 2022

Qutstanding for following periods from due date of payment
Less than Meore than

1 year 1-2 vears 2-3 years 3 years Total

)MSME 27.07 - - - 27.67
i)Others 772.14 66.89 1.44 0.16 840.63
iipDisputed Dues-MSME 2 = - " =
iv)Disputed Dues-Others E - . . =
viUnbilled dues - = = & a

799.81 66.89 1.44 016 808.30

As at 31 March 2021

Outstanding for following periods from due date of payment

Less than 1-2 years 2-3 years More than Total
1 year 3 years
IMSME 1.94 - - - 1.94
1i)Others 660.32 0.93 0.24 - 661.49
iiiyDisputed Dues-MSME . - = - -
iviDisputed Dues-Others - - - - -
viUnbilled dues = - - - ;
662.26 .93 0.24 - 663.43

All trade payables are ‘current’.
The Group's exposure te currency and liquidity risks related to trade payables is disclosed in note 32.

Disclosures as required under the Micro, Small and Medium Enterprises Development Act, 2006 ("the Act") based on the information available
The principal amount remaining unpaid to any supplier as at the end of the year 29.67 1.94
The interest due on the principal remaining outstanding as at the end of the year * -
The amount of interest paid under the Act, along with the amounts of the payment made - -
beyond the appointed day during the year

The amount of interest due and payable for the period of delay in making payment (which - -
have been paid but beyond the appointed day during the year) but without adding the

interest specified under the Act.

The amount of interest accrued and remaining unpaid at the end of the year . - -
The amount of further interest remaining due and payable even in the suceeeding years, < -
until such date when the interest dues as above are actually paid to the small enterprise,

for the purpose of disallowance as a deduclible expenditure under the Act

* Amount s below the round off norms adopted by the Group




Popular Vehicles and Services Limited
MNetes to the © lidaded financial skt {5 {continued)
(Allamounts me in mdian Rupees in millions)

¥ear ended Year ended
31 March 2022 31 Mareh 2021
12 Revenue from operations
Sale of praducis
Sales of new velicles inclnding labow income 23,2226) 19,395 41
Sale of spare parts and accessories 4,687 13 3783 o4
Sale of pre-owned vehicles 287281 247308
30,782.55 15,652.03
Sale of services 2,213.37 1,822,97
32,995.92 2747510
Other operating revenues
Income fiom schemes and incentives 1.177.93 0] 02
Finance and insmance commission 466,88 45599
lncomne ot diiving school 18.04 1214
3465879 18,935.25
Reconciliation of revenue from salbe of products and services
Gross revenue 14,784 .70 28,278 91
Less: Discount allowed 426,00 80331
32,995.92 27.475.10

(A} Disapgregate of revenue informadion
The Iable below presenis disagmepated revenues from connacls with customers for the below years ended by olferings and contract type. The Group believe that thi
disappiepation best depicts how the natgre, amount, timing and uncertainity of our revenues and cashflows are effected by industry, market and other ecopomic laotos

Particulars Year ended Year ended
31 March 2022 31 March 2021
Revenue by category
Passenper cars 21,790 46 19,262 73
Luxury vehicles 1612 54 1,442 00
Commmercial vehicles 9501.31 6,906.65
Others 1,664 43 1,323 87
34,655.79 18,935.25
Revenue by contract fype
Fixed price 34,658,79 2891325
34,653.7% 18,935.25
(B) Contracr balances
The following table provides information about frade receivables and contrace liabiliies Trony contract with customers,
Particulars Year cnded Year ended
31 March 2022 31 Mareh 2021
Tiade receivables 1,766.01 1,607 27
78841 32453

Contract liabilities

{C) Transaction price albocated to remaining performance obligations
The following table includes revenus expected 10 be recopnized in the futme velated to pecformance obligations that me unsatisfied {or patially satisfied) o the reporting

date
Parficulars Year ended Year ended
31 March 2022 31 March 2021
Within 1 year 78841 82453
Mote than | yen - .
Closing balance 75841 824,53
20 Qther income
lnerest income based on effective interest rale
Rent deposils 18,65 1039
Fined deposits with banks 11.62 529
Inlerest on income-tax 1efund 1.7 1045
Gain on sale of property, planl and equipinent (net) 320 20,74
Lialzilities / provisions no longer requited written back 60,01 56.67
Met gain on financial assets measured st fair value through profit and loss 6.89 19.24
Gain on derecognition of right-of-use assels 0.78 2810
Rent concession 1eceived (refer nole 33} 34 82 7035
Onhier non-aperaling income 40 52 36.04
183.20 5727
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Popular Vehickes and Services Limited
Notes to the © lidated financial stat ts {camti d}

{All arnounts are in Indian Rupees in millions)

21 Purchases of stock-in-trade
Hew velucles
Pre-owned vehicles
Spares, lubricants and accessories

Year ended
31 March 2022

Year ended
31 March 2021

22 Changes in inventorics of stock in trade
Opening myentory
Closing inventory

23 Employee benefits expenses
Salaries and allowances
Conniburion 1o praviden) and other funds (refer noke 313
Stafl welfare expense

2283011 19,046.09
2,740.27 2566 22
4,099 86 3.172.58

2967024 14,584.89
311683 286222
3,620 38 311633

{503.55) {254.61)
2,157.02 1,794.21
16027 15539
102.83 8547
1,420.12 2,03507

The Code an Sacial Secunty. 2320 ( Code™) relaimg ro enployvee benefirs during employment and pose employment benefits received Presid

I assenr in Seprember 2020

The Code has been published in the Gazene of India. However, the date on which the Code will come into effect has not been notified and the final rulesfinterpreistion have
nol yet been issued. The Company will assess the impaci of the Code when il comes into efiect and will record any velated impact in the periad the Code becomes effective

Based on a preliminary assessmenl, the entity betieves the impacr of the change will not be significant

24 Finance costs

Interest on bank bomowings 267.19 23762
Interest on lease liabilities {1efer note 33) 32257 28092
(rher borowing costs 1384 32.56
608.60 551,10
25 Depreciation and amortisation expense
Depreciation on property, plant :amd equipment 27617 34412
Depreciation on righl- of-use asset (refer note 33) 40311 36567
Amortisation on intangible assets 13.29 1512
69157 T14.01
26 (nber expenses
Rent 10174 47
Advertising and zales promotion 14218 120,06
Consunables 248 30 155,83
Repairs and maintenznce:
Buildings 3165 2520
Plant and machinery 10035 59.50
Others 17.67 2670
Power, water and fuel 10912 21.97
Travelling and conveyance £6.82 0572
Housekeeping and security and other contiact charges 197.79 8515
Office expenses 5770 33 68
o Communication 54,62 5270
Refurbishment charpes on pre-owned vehicles 4090 3509
Pre delivery inspection charpes 6120 47.04
Rates and 1axes 2248 2570
Teansportation charges 4533 3990
Bank charges 2925 26,24
Insurance 47.54 4734
Management fee on pre-owned vehicles 1286 993
Legal and professional 26.41 1234
Comnrission paid 415 360
Donation and charity 014 a1s
Expendituve on corporate social responsibility (CSR) (1efer note (i} below) 500 418
Miscellaneous expenses 1433 26.73
1,458.13 1.053.88
{i) CSR expenditure
(1) Gross amount 1equiced to be spent by the Group during, the year 509 428
(i) Amount approved by the Board to be spent during the year 500 428
{iii} Amount spent during the year on {in cash)
- Comstruction/ acquisition of asset - -
- On purposes other than above 509 423
(iv} (Shortfall) / Excess at the end of the vear - -
() Total of previous years shortfall -
(vi} Details of related party iransactions ¥
(vii) Where a provision is wmade with respect to a lability incured by entering, into a conmactual obligation, the
movements in the provision during the yvea should be shown separately : )
(vii1) Reason for shorifall N A NA
(1) Natare of TSR activities:
a) Payment ta Prime minister national rehef fund - -
\.‘ _'.;I;! :kl” development 509 428 AND -
*J . 4 Ue) Educnnion - D AP
(23] K‘DChl Id) Rural development VRS ‘j\}" T -f:"}.\\\.
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Notes to the consolidated financial statements (continucd)
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Contingent liabilities and commitments

Particulars

As at
31 March 2022

As at
31 March 2021

Contingent liabilities
Claims against the Group not acknowledged as debts:

Service tax related wmalters 1597 16.80
KVAT related maiters 114.47 127.67
Income tax matters 33.42 96.09
Employees' state insurance/provident fund demand 7.95 7.95
Customer claims 86.67 8315
Commitments

Estimated amount of contracts remaining to be execoted on capital account (net 98.67 180.41

of advances) and not provided for

Details of claims against the Group

a) Pending resolution of (he respective proceedings, it is not practicable for the Group to estimate the timing of cash flows, 11 any, in respect of the above as it is
determinable only on receipt of judgement/ decision pending with varions forums/ authorities. The Group has received all its pendmg litigations and proceedings
and has adequately provided for when provision is required and disclosed as contingent liabilities where applicable, in the financial information. The Group does
not expect the cutcome of these proceedings (o have a materially adverse effect on its financial position.

b} There are certain claims raised by various customers, pending before various consumer forums. The management does not expect the outcome of the action to
have a material effect on its financial position

¢l On 28 February 2019, the Hon'ble Supreme Court of (ndia has delivered a judgment clarifying the principles that need 1o be applicd in deteemining the
components of salaries and wages on which Provident Fund (PF} contributions need to be made by establishments. Basis this judgment, 1be Group has re-
computed its liability towards PF for the month of March 2019. In respect of the earlier periods/years, the Group has been legally advised that there are numerous
interpretative challenges on the application of the judgment retrospectively. Based on such legal advice, the management belicves that it is impracticable at this
stage to reliably measure the provision required, il any, and accordingly, no provision has been made towards the same. Necessary adjustments, it any, will be

made to the books as more clarity emerges on this subject.

Earnings pev sharve

A, Basic carnings per share

The calculation of profit attributable to equily share holders and weighted average number of equity shares outstanding for the purpose of calculation of basic

carnings per share are as follows:
i) Net profit attributable to equity share holders

Particulars

Year ended Year ended
31 March 2022 31 March 2021
Net profit [or the year, attributable to the owners of the Company 336.69 324.55
ii) Weighted average number of equity shares(basic and diluted )
Particulars Year ended Year ended
d 31 March 2022 31 March 2021
Nutnber of equity shares at the beginning of the year (refer note 13) 12.54 12.54
Weighted average nuriber of shares issued during the year (right issug) - -
Weighted average number of shares issved during the vear (bonus issue) - -
Weighted average number of equity shares of INR 10 each outstanding during the year 12.54 12.54
Earnings per share, basic and diluted 26.85 25.88

B. Diluted earnings per share
There are no potential dilutive equity shares as at balance sheet dates.
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Notes to the consolidated lnancial statements (continued)
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Segment reporting

Ind AS 108 “Operating Scgment” (~Ind AS 1087) establishes standards for the way that public business enterprises report information about operating, segments
and relaled disclosures about products and services, peographic areas, and major customers. Based on the "management approach” as defined in Ind AS 108,
Operating segments are to be reporied in 2 manner consistent with the internal reporting provided to the Chief Operating Decision Maker (CODM). Members of
Board of the Group have been identified as the Chief Operating Decision Maker ("CODM"} as defined by Ind AS 108 “Operating Segments". All operating
segiments” operating results are reviewed regulaly by the Group's CODM w make decisions aboul resources Lo be allocated (o the segments and assess their
performance.

Geographical segments

Geographical information analyses the company's revenue and non current assets by the Company's country of domicile (i.e.India} and other countries. The
Company's sole geographical segment is India. Accordingly. there are no additional disclusure (o be provided under Tnd AS 108, other than those aleady provided
in the financial statements.

Operational segments

The Group has stroctured its business broadly intg lour verticals ~ Passenger cars, Luxury vehicles, Commercial vehicles and others. Others primarily comprises of
direct sale of spares, other than through the business segments. The accounting principles consistently used in the preparation of the financial statements are also
consistently applied to record income and expenditure in mdividual segments.

Income, direct expenses, assets and liabilities in relation 1o segments are categorised based on items that are individually identifiable to that segment.

Particulars

Year ended
31 March 2022

Year ended
31 March 2021

Segment revenue

Passenger cars 21,790.46 19,262.73
Luxury vehicles 1,612.54 1,442.00
Commerciat vehicles 9,591.31 6,906.66
Others 1,664.48 1,323.86
Total 34,658.70 28.935.25
Segment profits before income tax
Passenger cars 695.19 664.72
Luxury vehicles 64.50 38.98
Commercial vehicles 24999 234.56
Others 9391 85.36
Total 1,103.59 1,023.62
Less:
Finance charges 608.6¢ 551,10
Exceptional item = -
Unallocated expenses (net of unallocated imcome) 9.53 -
Profit before tax 485.46 472.52
Tax expense 148.77 147.97
Profit for the year 336.69 324.55
Less : Non controlling interest =
Profit attributable to the owners of the Company 336.69 324.55
As at As at

31 Mareh 2022

31 March 2021

Scgment asscts

Passenger cars 8.258.17 7,094.03
Luxury vehicles 952.36 1,092 40
Commercial vehicles 2.936.60 2,729.79
Others 485,75 299.02
Total 12,632.88 11,215.24
Segment liabilities
Passenger cars G,600.32 5,606.00
Luxury vehicles 750,27 861,17
Commercial velicles 2,006.75 1,916.60
Oihers 476.68 34557
Total * 983402 8,729.34

¥
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N+t~




Popular Vehicles and Services Limited
MNotes to the consolidated fmancial statements (continued)
(Al amounts are in Indian Rupees in millions}

M Employece benefits

A Delined contrilution plan
The Group makes contribulions, determined as a specificd percenlage of employee salaries, in respect of qualilying employees towards provident fund and other
funds which are defined contribuwtion plans. The Group has no obligations other than to make the specified contributions. The contributions are charged o the
statemnent of profil and loss as they acerue

B Defined benefit ptan

The Group operates a post-employment defined benefil plan which s provided for based on an actuanal valuation carried oul by an independent actuary using the
projected unit credit methad. The Graup acerues gratuity as per the provizinns ol the Payvment of Gratity Act 1972 Giatuity Act’)

The Gratuity Plan entitles an employee, who has rendeied atleast tive years of continuous service. to receive anc-hatt month’s salary tor cach year af completed
service (service of six months or above is rounded off o one year) at the time of relirement/ exil, restricted 1o a sum of IMR 2 00 million
Based on an actuarial valuation obtained in this respect, the following 1able sets out the slalus of the benefit plan and the amounts recognised in the Group's

consolidaled linancial stalements as at balance sheet date:

Reconcilintion of the prajected defined henefit obligation

Particulars Asat As al
31 March 2022 31 March 2021
Defined benefit liability 26963 24512
Plan assets 25092 35139
Net defined benefit liability! (asset) 18.71 (3.27)
Mon-current defined benefil liability 17.21 4.51
Current defined benefit liability 1.50 095
Currenl defined benefit {asset) - (11.76)
Liability for compensated absences 71.21 7919
Non-current defined benefil liability 4558 43,68
Current defined benefl liability 2563 155
C Reconciliation of met defined benehit (asset) liability
i) Reconcifiotion of present wiltes of defined benefit obligotion
The following table shows a reconciliation from the opening balances to the closing balances for net defined benfit (asset)/! tiability and its components:
Particulars As at As at
3t March 2022 31 March 2021
Defined benelit obligation as at the beginning of the year 24512 221.00
Curren| service cost 3409 3213
Past service cost -
Interest cost 14,40 13.13
Benefits paid {22.08) {14.57)
Liabilities assumed /{settled} - 1.86
Re-measnretieitis
Actuarial gain/{loss) recognised in other comprehensive income
- changes in financial assumplions (8.32) 208
- changes in demographic assumptions - -
- changes in expenence over the past period 552 (1e.51)
Defined benefit obligation as at the end of the year 169,63 245.12
1) Reconcitiation of present vedue of plon aisets
Particulars Asat Asat
31 March 2022 31 March 2021
Plan asscts at the beginning of the year 251.39 226,20
Contributions paid inlo the plan 558 2239
Benefits paid (22.09) {14.57)
Interest income 1589 14, 86
Assels acquired/(setiled) 1.86
Re-measurenents
- chanpes in demographic asswmptions 014 -
- return on plan assets excluding amount included in nel interest on the net defined Tiability/(asset) 001 0.63
Balance at the end of the year 250,92 251.39
Net defined benefit liability 18.71 (6:27)
I+ (i) Expenses recognised in the ¢ lidated statement of profit and loss
Particulars Year ended Year ended
31 March 2022 31 March 2021
Current service cost 3499 3213
Met interest on net defined liability {1.49 (1.73)
Net gratuity cost 33.50 30.40
(ii) Remeasuvements recognised in other comprehensive inceme
Particulars Year ended Year ended
31 March 2022 31 March 2021
Actuarial {gain) loss on defined benelit obligation {2 80} 1843
(Returm) { loss on plan assel excluding terest mcome (0.01) (0.65




Popular ¥ehicles and Sevvices Limited

Notes to the consalidated financial statemenis (continued)
{All amounts are in Indian Rupees in millions)

31 Employee benefits {continued)
E  Plan asset
Plan assel comprises of the following,

Particulars Year ended Year ended
31 March 2022 31 March 2021
Funds managed by Life Insurance Corporation of India 25092 251.3%

The Group makes annual eontribution 1o the Life Insurance Corporation of India ("LIC"}of an amoum advised by LIC. The Group was not informed by LIC of the

investments made by them or (he breakup of the plan assels inlo various lype of investmenls
F  Delined benefit obligation
{1 Actuarial Assumptions for defined benefit liability
The following are the principal acturial assumplions at the repotting date {expressed as weighted averape):

Particulars

Year ended
31 Mareh 2022

Year ended
31 March 2021

Discount rate

Salary prowth rate

Atltrition rate

Weighted average duration of defined benefit obligaiton

5.40%-6.9% pa

6% pa
14%-2%% pa
315 Yre- 9 Yrs

4.80%-65% pa
&% pa
14%.29% p.a
377 Yrs- 9 Yis

The weighled average assumptions used fo determine nel periodic benefit cost as set oul below,

Assumplions regarding future monality experience are sel in accordance with the standard table - IALM 20012-14 (Ultimate). The Group assesses these
assumptions with its projecled long-term plans of growth and prevalent industry standards. The discount rate is based on the povernment securities yield
Gratuily is applicable only to employees drawing a salary in Indian Rupees and there are no other foreign defined benefit gratvity plans

{it) Scnsitivity analysis

Reasonably possible changes at the reporting date to one of the acturial assumplions, holding other assumptions constanl, would have alfected the defined benefit

obligation by the amounts shown below

Particulars As at 31 March 2022

Increase Decrease
Discount rate (1% movement) (1474 1717
Future salary growth (1% movement) 16.90 (1481
Attrition rate (1% moveimnent) 0.70 (0.96)

Particulars

As at 31 March 2021

fncrease Decrease
Discount rate { 1% movement) {13134 1619
[Future salary growth (1% movement) 1587 (13383
Adtrition rate ( 1% movement) 018 (0.24)

Although the analysis does not 1ake account of the full distiribution of the cash flows expected under the plan, it does provide an approximation of the sensitivity of

the assumption shown.

(iii) Actuarial Assumptions for compensated absences

Particulars

Year ended
31 March 2022

Year ended
31 March 2021

[Discount rate
Salary growth rate
Attrition rate
Martality rate

5400 69% pa
&% p.a
14%-29% pa

1ALM 2012-14 Ult

4 80%- 6 5% pa
6% pa

14%-29% p.a
IALM 2012-14 Ult,
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Financial lnsir s~ Fair valnes and rish pusnagement (conlinned)

Financial visk management
The Group's activities expose il 1o a vanely of finaneial nsks: credi risk, liquidity risk and markel risk

Risk management framework

The Group's board of directors {'the Board') has overall responsibility for the I and rsimht of the Tisk management Iramework They oversec how managemenl monilors
compliance with the risk management policies and procedures, and reviews the adequacy of Lhe risk I k in relation o the risks faced by the Group The Doard is assisied in
s oversight role by mtemal audit Internal audil underiakes both repular and ad hoc reviews of risk management controls and procedures, the resuliz of which are reporied 1o the Board

Rl ok

Credit risk

Credit rigk iz the msk thal the counterparty will not meet i1s obligation under a financial instrument or cuslomer contract, leading (o Nnancial loss. The eredi risk anses principally from its
operaling aclivilies (primarily trade recervables) and from itz investing aclivites, includmg dey with banks and financial insiitutions and other Minancial instruments

Credit risk iz controlled by analysing credil Timits and crediwonhiness of cuslomers on a continugus basis to whom credil has been ted afier oblaimmg ¥ app I3 for credit. The

collection from the trade receivalles are monitored on a continuous basis by the recervables 1eam
The maximum exposure to credil risk lor rade receivables was as follows,

As at As at
Pariiculars 31 Mareh 2022 31 March 2021

Trade recervables 1.81551 165777

1.815.51 1,657.77

The movement in allowance lor eredil loss in respeet of trade and other receivables during the yeiir was as Tollows:

Allowance for credil loss As ol As al
31 March 2022 M March 2021

Balance al the beginning 50 50 5181
Provision crealed during the year 942 24 16
Imparment loss recognised during the year (1042 {2607
Balance al the end 49,50 50.50

N singhe customer accounted for more than 10% of the revenue There is ne significant concenlration of credil risk

Credit risk on cash and cash equivalent and other bank balances 15 limiled as the Group penerally transacts with banks and fivancial institytions wath high credit ralings assigned by domestic
credil ratiny, agencies.

The group allocates each expasure (o a credil nsk grade based on the historic trend of receivables movement between 1he ageing buckels The loss rales are caleulated based on the simple averap
of the trend in receivable ageiny

Average Loss Rate

% q As al As at
Agving Peviod 31March 2022 31 Mareh 2021
Not due & =
Less than & months. 412% 8.53%
G months - | year 30 83% 42.58%
| -2 years 61.73% B1.50%|
2 - 3 vears or more than 3 vears 100 004 100 00%

Ligwidity rish

Laqundity rizk 15 the risk thal the Group will encounter difficully 1n meeling the obligations associated with 115 financial liabiies that are seflled by delivering cash ar another financial asset The
Group's approach to managing hquidity 15 to ensure, as far as possible, that st will always have sufficient liquidily 1o meel ils liabililies when duc, under bath normal and stressed conditions,
wilhout incurring unacceplable losses or risking damage io the Group's repulalion

The Group believes that the working capital 15 sulficient io meed 115 current requi Is Accordingly, no liquidity risk is perceived

The table below provides delails regarding the undiscounted contraciual maturines of sigmficant financial habilities as of 3) March 2022:

Particulars Payable within I year More than 1 Total
year

| Trade payables 6% 30 - B6E 30

Barrowings 2,833 55 REO 55 3hot0

Lease liabilities . 269 94 31,5000 184001

Cher financial habilities 164 16 : 164 16

The 1able below provides details regarding the undiscounted contractual ilies of sigmificant financial liabilities as of 31 March 2021

Parliculars Payable wilhin 1 year More than § Total
yoar

Trade payables 663 43 - 663 43

Borrowings 263713 03 29 3,53042

Lease liabilives « 304 35 2,685 08 296943

nher financial liabilities 156 N} - | 56 90
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32 Finimeinl lnstramenis- Fai values and cisk management {continued)

vl Murkel risk
Markel risk 15 the nisk hal the fair value of fulure ¢ash flows of a financial instrument will Nuetuate because of changes in markel prices, such as foreign exchange roates, interest rates and equity
prices

Fareign currency risk
The Group is exposed Lo currency nisk 1o 1he exienl that there is 2 mismatch berween the currencics in which iransaclions are denominated and the funclional corrency of the Group The
funconal currency of Lhe Group is INR and 1he Group does not have any material foreign currency ransactions during the years ended 31 March 2022 and 31 March 2021

Cash Mlow aad fair value interes! rate risk
The Choup's man interest rate risk aoses Tom long-tenm and slwri-terr bornwangs with vanalile rates wiieh expose the Group i cash Do intevest rate visk. Te mierest rae on the Giroup's
financial insiruments is based on markel rales The Group menitors the movement in inlerest rales on an onyoiny, basis

{n} [nierest rate risk exposure

The exposure of the Group's borrowing 1o interest rate changes al the end of the year are as follows

Financial liabilities {bank borrowings) As at Asal
31 March 2022 31 March 2021
Varigble raie Jooy term boreowings including current malurities o 940 97 923 82
Sensitivity
Particilnrs Lmpact on profic or (loss) Impacd o odlier components of
Equity
Asat Asal As Al As i
31 March 2022 31 March 2021] 31 March 2022 I March 2021
1%% increase in variable rate [241) {224) (7.04) (6 01)
1% decrease in variable rale 941 Eral T04 G0l

The inleresl rate sensilivity is based on the closing balance of variable rale borrowines from banks and financial instilutions

33 Leases
Group as a lessee
The Group has taken showrooms and service centres on lease from various pariies from where business operations are performed The leases lypicallyrun for a period of 2 year - 60 years Lease
paymenis are renegolialed neanng the expiry to reflect markel rentals

1) Leiuse linkifities
Following are the changes in the |ease lismlites for the year ended;

Particulars As sl As al
31 March 2022 31 March 2021
Halance as at beginnng of the year 295943 2,961 46
Addhions 1,131 62 263 90
Finance cost accrued during the year A2 57 280 02
Payment of lease liabililies (554 51) (46340
Renl concession received * {34 82) [T 35)
Remeasurement on account of modificalion 209 8161
D of lease abibity durmy the: year {15.22) 18171
Bnlance as at end of the year 3.840.01 2.969.43
Mon-current lease labilities 357007 2,665 0%
Currenl lease liabilities 26994 304 35
* The Group has renegolialed with cerlzin landlords on the rent ion due to COVID 19 pandemic These renl concessions are short term in nature and meels the olher condibions specified
n the natilication issued by the Ceniral Governmenl in consuliation with Mational Financial Reponting Authonily dated 24th July 2020 as Companics { [ndan A ing Standards) Amend
Rules, 2020 with effect from Ist Apn! 2020 Thus, in accordance with the sad notification, the Company has elecied (o apply’ Minn as the . ion does not necessilale a lease

madificalion as envisaged in the Standard by recording in the "Other income™




Popular Vehicles and Services Limited

Notes to the consolidated financial statements (continued)
{All amounts are in Indian Rupees in millions, unless otherwise stated)

33  Leases (continued)

34

(i) Maturity analysis — comractual undisconnted cash flows

Particulars As at As at
31 March 2022 31 March 2021
Less than one year 604.95 444,90
One to five years 2,269.36 1,678.89
More than five years 4,095.58 2,789.09
Total undiscounted lease liabilities 6,969.89 4,012.88

(iii) Right-of-use assets
Right-of-use assets related to leased properties thal do not meet the definition of investment property are presented
equipment

as property, plant and

Particulars As af As al
31 March 2022 31 March 2021
Balance at beginning of year 232947 2,401.24
Addition to right-of-use assets 1,191.71 263.90
Depreciation for the year (403.11) (365.67)
Remeasurement on account of modification 2091 83.61
Derecognition of right-of-use assets (5.04) (53.61)
Balance at end of the vear 3,129.94 2,329.47
(iv) Amounts recognised in statement of profit or loss
Particulars Year ended Year ended
31 March 2022 31 March 2021
Interest on lease liabilities 322,57 28092
Depreciation on right-of-use assets 403.11 365.67
(v) Amounts recognised in statement of cash flows
Particulars Year ended Year ended
31 March 2022 31 March 2021
Total cash cutflow for leases (554.51) (468.40)

(vi) Operating leases

The Group is obligated under cancellable operating leases for its certain office premises which are renewable al the option of both the lessor and
lessee. Total rentat expenses under such leases amounted to Rs.101.74 million (31 March 2021 : Rs.47.94 million). These arrangements do not

qualify as a lease as per the requirements of Ind AS 116.

Capital Management

The Group's policy is to maintain a stable capital base so as to maiuatain investor, creditor and market confidence and to sustain future development
of the business. Management monitors capital on the basis of return on capital employed as well as the debt to total equity ratio. For the purpose of
debt ta total equity ratio, debt considered is long-term and short-term borrowings. Total equity comprise of issued share capital and all other equity

TESETves.
Particulars As at As at
31 March 2022 31 March 2021
Total equity attributable to the equity shareholders of the Company (A) 2,798.86 2,460.02
Long-term botrowings 880.55 893.29
Short-term borrowings 2,838.55 2,637.13
Total borrowings 3,719.1¢ 3,530.42
Less: cash and cash equivalents {183.96) (553.41)
Adjusted net debt {B) 3,535.14 2,977.01
Adjusted net debt to total equity ratio (B/A) 1.26 1.21
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Popular Yehicles and Services Limited
MNotes to the consolidated financial statements {continued)
(Al amounls are in Indian Rupees m millions)

36 Related parties

1 Names of related parites and description of relationship:
{a} Entity having significant influence over the Company BanyanTree Growth Capital 11, LLC, Mauritius

{b) Other related partics with whom the Company had transachons during the year
- Key management personnel and their relatives (KMP) Mr. Francis K Paul, Whole Time Director
Mr. John K Paul, Managimg Director
Mr Naveen Philip, Director
Mr. Jacob Kurian, Director
Mrs. Preeti Reddy, Director
Mr. George Joseph, Director {(w.e.- | July 2021}
Mr. Rahul Kurup, Nominee Direclor
Mr . John Verghese , Chiel Financial Officer
Mr . Philip Chacko Mundamlkunnathil , Chief Executive Officer (11l 7 January 2022)
Mr Varun Thazhathu Veedu , Company Secretary
Mr. Rushil John, Relative of EMTP
Mrs. Leela Philip, Relative of KMP
- Entities in which KMP has significant influence Prabal Motors Private Limited, India
Kuttukaran Trading Yentures, India
Kuttukacan [nstitute for Human Resource Development, India
Kuttukaran Homes LLP, India
Keracon Equipment Private Limited, Indiz
Il Related pariy transactions:
{a) The Group has entered into the following transactions with related partics.

Particulars Year ended Year ended

31 March 2022 31 March 2021
Revenue from operations
Kuttukaran [nstitute for Human Resource Development c 0.04
Keracon Equipments Private Limted 6219 36.83
Kuttukaran Trading Ventures - 0.14
Prabal Motors Private Limited 1 .90 137
Expense reimbursed by the Company
Keracon Equipments Private Limted 006 0.06
Kuttukaran Institute for Human Resource Development " 0.04
Expense reimbursed on behalfl of the Company
Kuttukaran Institute for Human Resource Development 008 010
Kurtukaran Homes LLP 024 0.16
Prabal Motors Private Linined 146 068
Repairs and maintenances
Kuttukaran Trading Ventures 016 -
Rent paid
Francis K Paul 578 503
John K Paul 079 0.69
Naveen Philip 2387 266
Leela Philip - 005
Kuttukaran Homes LLP 1998 1526
Rushil Iohn ; 075 043
Purchase of asscts
Prabal Molors Private Limited - ol2
Kuttukacan Trading Ventures 00l -
Sale of asset
Prabal Mators Private Limited 0.08 -
Kuttukaran Homes LLP - 4132
Loan (availed)/ repaid from directors
John K Paul (1.20) (0.10)
Naveen Philip (35900 2882
Commission and incentive to KMP
Francis K Paul 1.50 1.50
Jaln K Paul 1.50 1.50
Others 1.10 -
Remuneration to KMP*
Francis K Paul 738 567
John K Paul 7.38 567
Naveen Philip 741 717
Philip Chacko Mundanilkunnatil 1061
Others X 7.51
Sitting fees to independent divectors \Q/ T ‘_ 338 0.95
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Popular Vehicles and Serviees Limited
Notes to the ¢ lidated financial stat
(All amounts are in Indian Rupees in millions}

ts {continued)

36 Related parties (continued)

(b) Balanee receivable from/ (payable) to related partics as at the balance sheet date:

Particulars

As at
31 March 2022

As al
31 March 2021

Trade receivables

Prabal Motors Private Limited

Kuttukaran Institute for Human Resource Development
Kuttukaran Trading Ventures

Keracon Equipments Private Limited

Dues to creditors for expenses and others
Kuttukaran Homes LLP

Payable to KMP

Naveen Philip

Rushil John

John K Paul

Francis K Paul

Others

Loan from director

John K Paul

Francis K Paui

Naveen Philip

012
99]
(1.55)

G227}
(0.06)
(1.50)
(1 83)
(I

(18.29)
(17.65)
(37.38)

0.0l
009
296

(1.59)

(1.77)
(0.05)
(1.56)
(2.0)

(17.05)
(17.65)
(1,48)

*The amounts does not include provision for gratuity and compensated absences as the same is determined tor the Company as a whole based on an actuarial valvation

All the related parfy transactions entered during the year were in ordinary course of business and are on arm's length basis.




Popular ¥Yehicles and Services Limbied
Netes to the consolidnted Dmancial statements (eonlinwed)
(A amounts are i Indian Rupees in millionsg)

az

i}

kL]

39

40

a)

)

c}

a

Assets chssilied as held lor sale

The Group has classified following land and bnldings as Assel held for sale as at balance sheet dates and the same has staled al catrying value (baing lower of fair value less cost do sell or nel
book value)

Pacticulirs As al As at
; 31 March 2022 31 March 2021
Popular Vehicles and Services Limiled Halding, Company 15.42 1542

{1} The Group recerved notiee [rom the NH authorities 10 acquire 3 punml\ of the land on 10 August 2020 for the acquisition of 25 79 ares of land with an sequisition award ol Rs 31 47 million

Covid-19 pulbreak was declarad as a global pandemic by World Health Organisaiion The Company has been in operation consistently with work from home ar and in phiance
with the directives issued by Lhe Government authorilies. Accardingly, a5 on balance sheel date of 31 March 2022 and 31 March 2021, based on facts and circumsiances exisling as of that date,
the Company does nol anlicipale any material uncertainilies which affects its iquidity pesition and alse ability 10 continue as a yoing concern However, the impact assessment of Covid-19 iz a
conlinuing process given the uncenainilies associated with its nature and duration

{a) Mo {unds have been aitvanced or Joaned or invested (either from bon owed finds or share premium ar any other sources or kind of funds) by the Group 12 or in any other persons or entilies,
o ollerwise, Lhat the lidermediany shall directly o madireetly bengd e mvest i other persotis ol

mchwding Voveign entities §lntermedimies”), witl the undersanding, wheiler veconled in it
entitics identified 13 any manner whatsareer by or on Behalt of the Cosmpany ¢ Ulumawe Beoeficiaries™ or gnovide any uuacaatee, secuisty e the dike on behalt of the Llnmale Renciwianes

(1) Mo Tunds have been teveived by the Group from any persons o entilies. including forzign enlities 1 Funding Paies”n with the undersianding, whetlier veconded i wining o atherwase, thal

Lueetly, lend o ivestn giher persuns on entites identitiod in any manner whatsoever by or on behatt ot e Funding Pany  *Ulimare Beaciivianies”™) ar provide

the Company shall, duectly o s
any guarantee, securily or the like on behalf of the Ulimate Beneficiaries

Ratios as per the Schedule I reguirements *

Curreni Ratio = Current asseds divided by Current liabilities

Particulars A Azl
31 Muarch 2022 31 March 2028
Current assels G,055.61 5,64997
Cuorrent hailities 522242 491621
Kartio 116 115
% Change (vpm previous venr 0.57% 25.00%
Delbst 10 Equity Ratie =Total dely divided by Total equity where total debi refers to sum of corrent & non-gnrrent horvowings
As at As al
Particutars 31 March 2022 31 March 2021
Current borrowings 2,838 55 263713
Mon-current borrowings 38055 203 29
Tolal deln 3,719.10 353042
Tolal equity 2,198.80 246002
Ratin 133 1.44
% Change [com previows year =164 -12.10%
Debst Service Coverage Ratio = Enrnings available Lo service debd divided by total interest and horrowings
Particndars Asat As at
31 March 2022 31 March 2021
Profit before 1ax 435 46 472 52
Add: Non cash operating expenses and finance cost
Finance costs )8 60 55110
Depreciation and amorlisalion expense 692 57 724 91
Earmings available to service debt 1,786.63 1,748.53
Finance costs 408 60 55110
Non-current borrowings 380 55 39329
Current borrowings 2,838 55 262713
Total interest and borrowings 432770 481,52
Ratio 1.4 043
W Change frenk previous year -4.65% 30.30%

This ralio has increased from ¢ 32 (n March 2020 10 043 in March 2021 mamly due 10 decrease in borrowings and increase in Profilability as a result of higher margins and fixed cost reduction

Relura on Eguity/Retirn on Iny A = Net profit afier tax divided by Equity

Particalars Asal Asal
J1 March 2022 31 March 2021

Tolal equity 2,798 86 2,460 02

Profit after fax 136 69 324 55

Ratio 12.031% 13.19%

% Change lrom previous year -4.79% 124.70%

This vatio has increased from 5 87% in March 2020 1o 13 19% in March 2021 mawnby due to wncrease in Profil after tax which was mainly on aezount merease in service income and
1ationalisation of operational expenses

I’.“\‘ l"
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Papulae Velicles and Services Limblad
Mates to the ¢ lid
Al amownts are in Indian Rupees inomilhions)

1 Mmancial sial s {conlinued}

40 Ralios as per the Schedule H regquivem ends (continned) *

) Dventory Turmever Ratio = Cost of malerials consumed divided by closing inventory
Marticulars As As ot
31 Murch 2022 31 March 2021
Purchase of stock in trade 9671 24 24,384 39
Changes n myventories of stock-m-trade (503 535) (254 61)
Cust of malerials consumed 29,167,6% 24,330.28
Cloging inventory 362033 3683
Ratio 8.06 7.51
% Change lvom previons year 3.20%, HREF!
N Trade Reccivable Tuenover Ralio = Revenne from opedations divided by irade receivables
FParticulars As at As Ml
31 March 2022 31 March 2021
Revenwe fromm operations 34,658 79 2803523
Trade receivable 1,766 01 1,607 27
Ratie 19.6 18.00
I Y4 Change lrom previous year 9.6 %% -38.21%

This ratio has decreased from 29 13 yn March 2020 to 18 00 in March 2021 mainly due 1o normalisation in (rade receivable due to higher sales in March 2021 as comparcd to March 2020

g} Trade Payable Turnover Ratie = Purchascs divided by closing drade payabiles

Particulars Asat Asal
31 March 2022 31 March 2021
Purchase of stock i trade 29671 24 24,584 3%
Trade payable 68 30 £63.43
Ralio 407 306
* Change Irom previows year -T.80% #REF!
This ratio has increased from 19 47 in March 2020 to 37 04 in March 2021 on aceount reduced procument in March 2021 - primarily on account of Covid-19 pandemic impact
by Net Capital Turaover Ratie =Rovenne firom operations divided by Net working capital whereas net working capital = cucrent asse1s - enrvent liabilitics
Particulars Asat As at
31 March 2022 31 March 2021
Revenue [rom operations 34,658.79 18,9A5.25
Current agsets 6,055 61 5,640 97
Current liabilities 5,222.42 4,916 21
Met working capital §3a.19 731,76
Ratio 41.640 39.43
%% Change lrom previens yvear -5,50% 159.19%
This ralic has increased from (66 62} in March 2020 to 39 43 in March 2021 mainly due i the higher internal accruals and repayment of current bonowings - by utilsing the ECLGS facilibies
i Met Profit Ratic = Net profit afiec tax divided by Revenue from aperations
Particnlars As at As 2l
31 March 2022 31 March 2021
Profd afler 1ax 33669 324 55
Revenue (rom operaliong 34,658 10 2293525
Raltio 0.97% 1.12%
% Change from previons yeuwr -13.3%% 1587.14%
Thas ratio has increased from ¢ 3%% in March 202010 1 12% in March 2021 is mainly due 1o the higher margins and overall lixed cost reduction due 10 COVID-19 impact
i1 Relurn on Capital employed = Earnings befove interast and taxes(EBIT) divided by eapital employed {Totul equity + Borrowings - lnvesiments - Cash and cash equivalents - Bank
Particwlars At ok
M March 2022 31 March 2021
Proful before tax 485 46 472 52
Finance costs 608 60 35110
Earwings before interes) and iaxes (EBIT) 1,004.06 1,023.62
Tolal equity 2798 86 2460 02
Borrowings N9 1.53042
Invesimenls (60 207 {49.21)
Cash and cash equivalents (133 .9a) (555.08)
Bank balances other than cash and cash equivalents {19.56) (38.02)
Capital employed 6,2584.24 534723
Ratio 17.49% L%.14%
% Change lrom previous year -8,62% 24,93%

* Management have given explaination only for the variances above 25%

MANGALAM
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Popular ¥Vehicles and Services Limited

MNotes 19 1lhe ¢

d financial stal [

(&1l armounts are in Indian Rupees in millions)

41 With regad 1o the new amendmems undge “Division 11 of Schedule 117 under *Pat | = Balance Sheet - General Instrachions fn prepanation of Balance Shear” there are no balanecs/tiansactions
1hat eve required to be disclosed wilh repard 15 the following clauses L {in) ¢ L{iv), (i), Uiy, Genni ) (v} and (xvi) Tor the Group
With regand 1o the oew wimendments wder “Division 1 of Schedule 1 unden “Pact 11 - Stawement of Frofis and Loxs - Geneal Instructions o grepaation of Statemenl of Frofit mad 1oss™ (heve
are no Iransaclions thal are required (o be disclosed with regard 10 the following clauses B(1) and B{n) for the Group
42 Conzequent to d made in Schedule 111 of Ct ies Acl, 2013, being made effective from | April 2021, previous year numbers pertaining 1o current matwities of long temn debi of
Rs 275 4% million have been reclassied from "Other financial lishilinies {current¥ to 'Boreowings {curent) Sirmlary, an amount of Rs 322 23 million peraiming to security deposils has been
reclassified from Loans 1o Other financial assets
Further, dues (o other ereditors and acervals amounting 1o Rs 254 72 million have been reclassified from 'Other financial abilities {current)' to Trade payables - dues of other than micro
enterprises and small enterprises’
43 There are no significant subsequent events thal would require ad or discl in the fi | stai as on the bal sheel dale
As per our repon of even date atlached
Jor BS R & Associates LLP Jfor and on behalf of the Board of Directors of
Chartered Jleconmianis Popular Velicles and Seryices Limited
Fiem regifration number 11623 1WY W-100024 CIN: USCHOZKLI9E30 4741
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